Council

AGENDA

Kent County Council

REGULATION COMMITTEE MEMBER PANEL

Tuesday, 15th November, 2011, at 1.00 pm Ask for: Andrew Tait
Westgate Hall, Canterbury Telephone 01622 694342

Tea/Coffee will be available 15 minutes before the meeting
Membership

Mr M J Harrison  (Chairman), Mr A D Crowther  (Vice-Chairman), Mr H J Craske,
Mr S J G Koowaree and Mr R A Pascoe

UNRESTRICTED ITEMS
(During these items the meeting is likely to be open to the public)

1. Membership and Substitutes
2. Declarations of Interest for Items on the Agenda

3. Application to register land at Woodland Road at Lyminge as a new Village Green
(Pages 1 - 22)

4. Application to register land known as Seaton Meadow at Wickhambreaux as a new
Village Green (Pages 23 - 52)

5. Other items which the Chairman decides are Urgent

EXEMPT ITEMS

(At the time of preparing the agenda there were no exempt items. During any such items
which may arise the meeting is likely NOT to be open to the public)

Peter Sass
Head of Democratic Services
(01622) 694002

Monday, 7 November 2011



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

Application to register land at Woodland Road at Lyminge
as a new Village Green

A report by the Head of Countryside Access to Kent County Council’s Regulation
Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 15" November 2011

Recommendation: | recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into
the case to clarify the issues

Local Members: Ms. S. Carey Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land at Woodland
Road in the parish of Lyminge as a new Village Green from local resident Mr. S.
Huntley (“the Applicant’). The application, dated 7™ July 2010, was allocated the
application number VGA628. A plan of the site is shown at Appendix A to this
report and a copy of the application form is attached at Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and
the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a Commons
Registration Authority to register land as a Village Green where it can be shown
that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful
sports and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right' until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
» Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6™ April 2007 and the
application has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’
ended (section 15(4) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the 2008 Regulations, the Applicant must
notify the landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every
local authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a
newspaper circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the
County Council’'s website. In addition, as a matter of best practice rather than
legal requirement, the County Council also places copies of the notice on site to
provide local people with the opportunity to comment on the application. The

Page 1



publicity must state a period of at least six weeks during which objections and
representations can be made.

The application site

6. The area of land subject to this application is referred to in the associated
documentation by several names, including ‘church field’ and ‘the bumpy field'.
For the purposes of this report, it is referred to only as “the application site”.

7. The application site consists of an area of open and uncultivated land of
approximately 1.4 hectares (3.6 acres) in size situated adjacent to the village hall
at Woodland Road in the parish of Lyminge. It is situated on a reasonably steep
incline and access to it is via various recorded Public Rights of Way which cross
the site (Public Footpaths HE54 and HES6, and Bridleway HES5).

8. The application site, and the Public Rights of Way, are shown in more detail on
the plan at Appendix A.

The case

9. The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the
local inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20
years.

10.Included in the application were 85 user evidence questionnaires from local
residents demonstrating use of the application site for a range of recreational
activities for a period in excess of 20 years. A summary of the evidence in support
of the application is attached at Appendix C.

11.In addition, letters of support from the Parish Council and the local Community
Warden were also included with the application.

Consultations

12.Consultations have been carried out as required and the following comments
have been received.

13.The Lyminge Parish Council wrote to express support for the application. The
Parish Council stated that the application site had undoubtedly been open for use
by members of the public in Lyminge for well over 20 years. Some local residents
recall using it for more than 50 years. The land has, on occasion, been used for
both grazing and car parking.

14.The Shepway District Council did not express any opinion either in support of or
in opposition to the application. It stated only that District Council did not have any
proprietary interest in the application site, which is in the ownership of the Tory
Family Foundation.

15. A letter of support was also received from local resident Ms. C. Hughes, referring

to her own recreational usage of the application site since 1989. She adds that
she has observed many people using the land for horse riding, walking, mountain-

Page 2



biking, skateboarding and tobogganing. The site has also been used for
community events such as the millennium fireworks celebrations.

Landowner

16. The application site is owned by a registered charity known as the Tory Family
Foundation (“the Foundation”) and is registered with the HM Land Registry under
title number K674394.

17.An objection to the application has been received from Cripps Harries Hall
solicitors, who act on behalf of the trustees of the Tory Family Foundation. The
objection is made on the following grounds:

e That use of the land has not been such as to signify that the land has been
in use by the residents of a specified locality;

e That the use of the land has been so infrequent and of such low intensity
that its appearance was more akin to individuals using the land as
trespassers rather than general community use;

e That a considerable amount of use was either ‘by right’ in exercise of the
existing Public Rights of Way which cross the land or by virtue of
permission granted by the landowner for specified community events;

e That any use of the application site for recreational purposes would have
been interrupted on several occasions due to the use of the land for car
parking, an archaeological dig and sheep grazing; and

e That any use of the application site for recreational purposes would not
have been such as to suggest to a landowner that a right to recreate was
being asserted by the local people.

18.In support of the objection, a statutory declaration from Mr. P. Tory, one of the
trustees of the Tory Family Foundation, is provided. In it, Mr. Tory explains that he
formed the Foundation as a charity with his father in 1984, and gifted the land
forming the application site to the Foundation in 1988. Until 1993, the land was
used by Mr. Tory (who also owned the nearby Court Lodge Farm) for sheep
grazing, which involved daily visit by either Mr. Tory himself or one of his
employees. Although it was apparent from these visits that the public used the
recorded Public Rights of Way, general recreational use was not apparent. Over
recent years, permission has been sought for various activities and, in the
summer of 2010, part of the application site was cordoned off for a period of six
weeks for the purpose of an archaeological dig.

19.Also included with the objection is a statutory declaration from the solicitor
representing the Tory Family Foundation, Ms. A. Rogers, setting out examples of
permission sought from the Village Hall Management Committee to use the
application site. These include permission for bonfire celebrations in 2002 and for
car parking in relation to Lyminge Day in 2003, 2006 and 2007.

Legal tests

20.In dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County
Council must consider the following criteria:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?
(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

Page 3



(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up
until the date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections
15(3) or (4)?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

21.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right' has been considered by the House of
Lords. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell® case, it is considered that if a
person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or
permission (“nec vi, nec clam, nec precario”), and the landowner does not stop
him or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired.

22.1In this case, there is no suggestion that use of the application site for recreational
purposes has been in exercise of force. Access to the application site is freely
available from at least four points on the boundary of the site by virtue of the
existence of the Public Rights of Way, and there is no evidence that the Public
Rights of Way have ever been fenced off from the rest of the site so as to
physically restrict use to the existing paths. No evidence has been submitted to
suggest that general recreational use of the application site has ever been
challenged by way of notices or by way of verbal challenges by the landowner.

23.Similarly, although the landowner disputes the frequency and manner of use (a
point which will be addressed later on in the report), there is no evidence that
recreational use of the application site has been in any way secretive.

24.The landowner contends that on some occasions use of the application site has
been by virtue of the express permission of the landowner. Those occasions
include use of the site for community events, either for bonfire night celebrations
or car parking for the annual Lyminge Day celebrations. The applicant accepts
this point, but argues that the application does not seek to rely on these events in
support of the Village Green status. The general informal recreational activities
referred to in the application have taken place ‘as of right’ and without the
landowner’s permission.

Public Rights of Way

25.The landowner’s position is that a considerable amount of the recreational use of
the application site is associated with the designated Public Rights of Way. In his
statutory declaration, Mr. Tory states that during his visits to the application site,
he was aware of members of the public making use of the Public Rights of Way
crossing the application site, but he did not witness any use which exceeded the
exercise of those Public Rights of Way.

26.Use of existing Public Rights of Way across land is not considered to be ‘as of
right’ in the context of Village Green applications, because it is in exercise of an

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385

Page 4



existing right and would not have appeared to a reasonable landowner as the
assertion of a right to indulge in lawful sports and pastimes on the application site.

27.Therefore, in cases where Public Rights of Way cross an application site, it is
important to be able to differentiate between use which is pursuant to an existing
right to walk or ride a horse along a defined route and use which is of a more
general recreational nature. The issue was considered by the Courts in Laing
Homes?, in which the judge said that: ‘it is important to distinguish between use
that would suggest to a reasonable landowner that the users believed they were
exercising a public right of way to walk, with or without dogs... and use that would
suggest to such a landowner that the users believed that they were exercising a
right to indulge in lawful sports and pastimes across the whole of the fields’

28.The exercise of distinguishing between these different types of use is something
that is very difficult to achieve on paper. It is a question of evidence that requires
more detailed scrutiny, preferably by way of the cross examination of witnesses in
a public forum.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

29.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. It is not necessary to demonstrate that
both sporting activities and pastimes have taken place since the phrase ‘lawful
sports and pastimes’ has been interpreted by the Courts as being a single
composite group rather than two separate classes of activities®.

30.Legal principle does not require that rights of this nature be limited to certain
ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for organised sports or communal
activities to have taken place. The Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing
with children [are], in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may be the
main function of a village green*.

31.1n this case, the evidence demonstrates that the land has been used for a number
of recreational activities. The summary of evidence of use by local residents at
Appendix C shows the full range of activities claimed to have taken place, which
include cycling, fruit-picking, nature observation and tobogganing. There is also
reference in the evidence to use of the application site for the purposes of
organised community events, although it is probable that those events would
have been the subject of permission from the landowner and thereby any use of
the land associated with those events is likely to have been permissive.

32.However, by far the majority use of the application site has been for the purposes
of walking (with or without dogs). As stated above, there is a question as to the
degree of use which has been on the recorded Public Rights of Way which
requires further clarification before a conclusion can be reached.

? R (Laing Homes) v Buckinghamshire County Council [2003] 3 EGLR 70 at 79 per Sullivan

* R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385

* R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord
Hoffman in R v. Oxfordshire County Council, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385

Page 5



(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

33.The right to use a Town or Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a
locality, or of a neighbourhood within a locality, and it is therefore important to be
able to define this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to
whom the recreational rights are attached can be identified.

“locality”

34.The definition of locality for the purposes of a Town or Village Green application
has been the subject of much debate in the Courts. In the Cheltenham Builders®
case, it was considered that “...at the very least, Parliament required the users of
the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that could sensibly be described as a
locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a sufficiently cohesive entity which is
capable of definition’. The judge later went on to suggest that this might mean that
locality should normally constitute ‘some legally recognised administrative division
of the county’.

35. Further guidance in relation to the issue of locality is provided in the relevant
Regulations, which require applicants to describe the locality upon which their
case relies by reference to the name of a parish, electoral ward or other local
administrative area®.

36.The Applicant specifies the locality at Part 6 of the application form as “the parish
of Lyminge”. This is a qualifying locality for the purposes of Village Green
registration. A plan showing the locality is attached at Appendix D.

“a significant number”

37.The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial:
‘a neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of
the inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that
the land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’’. Thus, what constitutes a
‘significant number’ will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each
case depending upon the location of the application site.

38.The landowner disputes that the application site has been of sufficient quantity to
signify that the land has been in general use by the local community or to suggest
that a right to recreate was being asserted by the residents of the locality. Rather,
it is suggested by the landowner that general recreational use of the site for lawful
sports and pastimes has been infrequent and of low-level intensity.

39.The applicant contends this assertion, stating that the photographs and letters
submitted in support of the application provide clear evidence of the use of the

® R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at 90
® See paragraph 9 of Schedule 6 of the Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008
"R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 6



application site for recreational purposes. A number of well-worn unofficial tracks
that are not recorded Public Rights of Way are visible on aerial photographs of
the site which, according to the applicant, indicate a high level of usage.

40. 1t difficult to reconcile the differences in the landowner’s recollections and the user
evidence adduced in support of the application by the applicant. The fact that the
application is supported by 85 user evidence questionnaires, many from people
asserting use on a daily or weekly basis, means that, on balance, it seems
probable that the land has been used by a significant number of the residents of
the locality.

(d) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or (4)?

41.The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’
up until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making of
the application, to fulfil one of the alternative criterion set out in sections 15(3) and
15(4) of the 2006 Act.

42.In this case, there is no evidence of any direct challenge to the use of the
application site for the purposes of lawful sports and pastimes by the local
community. Therefore, it can be concluded that the use of the application site has
continued up to, and in this case beyond, the date of the application.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

43.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years. In this case, use of the application site
‘as of right’ is continuing and, as such, the relevant twenty-year period (“the
material period”) is calculated retrospectively from the date of the application, i.e.
1990 to 2010.

44.The user evidence summarised at Appendix C demonstrates that there has been
use of the application site in excess of the last twenty years.

45.However, the landowner asserts that any use of the application site for lawful
sports and pastimes would have been interrupted on several occasions, due to
the use of the land for car parking, an archaeological dig and sheep grazing.

46.The applicant’s position is that the use of the land for car parking lasted only
approximately four hours on each occasion and was therefore an inconsequential
interruption to use when considering the twenty year period as a whole. The
archaeological dig, according to the applicant, took place after the application was
made and is therefore of no relevance. With regard to the sheep grazing, the
applicant states that this actually encouraged, rather than deterred, use of the
application site as the grass was kept short, thereby making it more suitable for
recreation.

47.Considering the evidence as a whole, it does not appear that the examples cited
by the landowner would necessarily or materially have interrupted the recreational
use of the land. In particular, the geography of the site and the existence of the
Public Rights of Way would have significantly limited the areas of the application

Page 7



48.

site capable of use for car parking and, even if small parts of the application site
were temporarily inaccessible, other sections would have been available for
recreational use. Such interruptions to use as did occur during the relevant twenty
year period would appear to have been occasional and sporadic, and
consequently not of a substantial nature.

As such, it would appear that there has been use of the application site for a full
period of no less than twenty years.

Conclusion

49.

50.

51.

52.

Although the relevant Regulations® provide a framework for the initial stages of
processing the application (e.g. advertising the application, dealing with
objections etc), they provide little guidance with regard to the procedure that a
Commons Registration Authority should follow in considering and determining the
application. In recent times it has become relatively commonplace, in cases which
are particularly emotive or where the application turns on disputed issues of fact,
for Registration Authorities to conduct a non-statutory Public Inquiry®. This
involves appointing an independent Inspector to hear the relevant evidence and
report his/her findings back to the Registration Authority.

Such an approach has received positive approval by the Courts, most notably in
the Whitmey'® case in which Waller LJ said this: ‘the registration authority has to
consider both the interests of the landowner and the possible interest of the local
inhabitants. That means that there should not be any presumption in favour of
registration or any presumption against registration. It will mean that, in any case
where there is a serious dispute, a registration authority will almost invariably
need to appoint an independent expert to hold a public inquiry, and find the
requisite facts, in order to obtain the proper advice before registration’.

It is important to remember, as was famously quoted by the Judge in another
High Court case'!, that ‘it is no trivial matter for a landowner to have land,
whether in public or private ownership, registered as a town green... [the relevant
legal tests] must be ‘properly and strictly proved’. This means that it is of
paramount importance for a Registration Authority to ensure that, before taking a
decision, it has all of the relevant facts available upon which to base a sound
decision. It should be recalled that the only means of appeal against the
Registration Authority’s decision is by way of a Judicial Review in the High Court.

In this case, nearly all of the withesses refer to use of the application site for
walking of some kind. Whilst recreational walking across the application site as a
whole would count as qualifying use, some of the evidence cited by the
recreational users of the application site refers to horse-riding and using the land
as a shortcut to amenities. Due to the several Public Rights of Way which cross

& Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008

® The Public Inquiry is referred to as being ‘non-statutory’ because the Commons Act 2006 does not
expressly confer any powers on the Commons Registration Authority to hold a Public Inquiry.
However, Local Authorities do have a general power to do any thing to facilitate the discharge of any
of their functions and this is contained in section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972.

" R (Whitmey) v Commons Commissioners [2004] EWCA Civ 951 at paragraph 66

" R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1997] 1EGLR 131 at 134

Page 8



the land, it is necessary to differentiate between those different types of walking in
order to determine whether the use of the application site has been in a manner
that is capable of giving rise to the registration of the land as a new Village Green.
This is not an exercise which can be achieved on paper, and requires further and
fuller examination of the evidence as a whole.

53.A Public Inquiry would not only facilitate this, but it would also allow the other
issues disputed by the landowner to be tested, including the effect of the alleged
interruptions to use and whether use has been by a significant number of local
residents.

Recommendation

54.1 recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into the case to clarify the
issues.

Accountable Officer:

Mr. Mike Overbeke — Tel: 01622 221512 or Email: mike.overbeke@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221628 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Environment and Waste
Division, Environment and Regeneration Directorate, Invicta House, County Hall,
Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site
APPENDIX B — Copy of application form
APPENDIX C — Table summarising user evidence
APPENDIX D - Plan showing the locality

Page 9




616000

APPENDIX A:
Plan showing the application site

= T T —_—
- \ | =
= ‘ N
i \ ) / /T
= \ x5 [ /)
| ‘ St |8 .,
0 Q | & /
c | e | o I8/ 8|8 /1
S| | O 5| S/ 2w | 3
% & \ S el ea £
c| 219 a4 2 eo<g 5
S| B e |x>(3 | ] -
e, 8 g 5128 £ &
= O o c |G | |
L0 > 8 | 2 /
| - b= / /
\ \ »n £ /
! ) \g

= 8fMary and 3
\ /Sfﬁthelburga's Church

4 % “»‘ ) A Ll \4 —
\ \ Public Footpath HES6 | /

Monastery \
(remains of) ==

Bridleway HE55 (! o The Old Rectory

140750

Public Rights of Way are shown for information only.
For information as to exact alignment and position of rights of way,
please refer to the Definitive Map of Public Rights of Way

616000

Land subject to Village Green application at
Woodland Road, Lyminge

County
Council

S@lle 1:5000

140750




FORM CAS | - APPENDIX B:
| Copy of application form

‘ommons 'Act 2006: section 15

Application for the 'registratidn of land
as a new Town or Village Green

This section is for office use only

Official stamp of the Registration Authority

indicating date of receipt: - Application number:
- NOABLY
COMMONS ACT 2006
KENT COUNTY COUNGCIL
REGISTRATION AUTHORITY
12 JUL 2000 : VG number allocated at registration
(if application is successful):

Note to applicants

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of fhe Commons Act 2006 (changes to the commons registers):
Guidance to applicants in the pilot implementation areas’ and to note the following:

e All applicants should eomplete parts 1-6 and 10-12.

e Applicants a'pp!ying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in éddition complete
parts 7 and 8. Any person can apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in
section 15(2) (3) or (4) apply.

» Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete part
9. Only the owner of the land can apply under section 15(8).

s There'is no fee for applications under section ‘!5.

Note 1 1. Commons Registration Authority
Insert name of Commons _ '
Registration Authority Tothe: kénT Co g NTY CouvmiiL

Sessions House
CoumTY RoAD
MAYDSTO M E

MELY IXG

Page 11




Note 2
If there is more than one
applicant, list all names. Use a
iparate sheet if necessary.
State the full title of the
. organisation if the applicant is a
body corporate or
unincorporate. If you supply an
emalfl address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authorilty or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
emall. If part 3 is not completed
all correspondence and notices
will be sent to the first named
applicant. '

2. Name and address of the applicant

Name: 57ePheny DEnns HUBTLET
Sildeduutay
(incl. Posicode)

Teiephone number:

{incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Note 3
This part should be completed if
representative, e.¢. a solicitor,
1s instructed for the purposes of
the application. If so all
correspondence and notices will
be sent to the person or firm
named here. If you supply an
emalfl address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authorily or other
persons {e.g. objectors} via
 emall. '

3. Name and address of representative, if any

Name:

Firm:

Full postal address:
(incl. Postcode)

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number: ‘
(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

Note 4

For further details of the
requirements of an application
refer to Schedule 4, paragraph
9 to the Commons Registration
(England) Regulations 2008. .

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your
land please tick this box and move to question 5. Application made
under section 15(8): O

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act' please tick
one of the following boxes to indicate which particular subsectlon and
qualifying- criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(2) applies: _ |z/
Section 15(3) applies: ' O
Section 15(4) applies: O

Page 12




*Section 15(6) enables any

~ petiod of statutory closure
where access to the land is
denied fo be disregarded in
determining the 20 -year period.

if section 15(3) or (4) applies, please indicate the date on which you
consider that use ‘as of right’ ended and why:

If section 15(8)* is being relied upon in determining'the period of 20
years, indicate the period of statutory closure (if any) which needs to
be disregarded: .

~ ‘ote b

© . his part is to identify the new
green. The accompanying map
must be at a scale of af least
1:2,500 and shows the land by
means of distinctive colouring
within an accurately idenlified
houndary. State the Land
Registry litle number where
known.

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of
which application for registration is made

Namne by which usually known: 7he Gagn, 7he Bompy Field, Courk Lodge
! N—Q/h- [}

Location: ZA0D Le4)STRT STATES Y] AND on THE SooTH WEST gipe of
C WeedkAMD ReAD, LYMidGE"

LAPD REGICTRY TITLE Nonge: K 67 42 94

Common Land register unit number (only if the land is aiready

‘registered Common Land):

Pleasé tick the box to confirm that you have attached a map of the

land (at a scale of at least 1:2,500): o
Cfﬁclorle v lend l?(;ﬁ—;ﬂ’fa Agh.v_,.lg)

. Note 6

It may be possible fo indicate
the locality of the green by
reference to an administrative
area, stich as a parish or
electoral ward, or other area
sufficiently defined by name
{(such as a village). If this is not
possible a map should be
provided on which a locality or
neighbourhood is marked
clearly at a scale of 1:10,000.

6. Locallty or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of
which the application is made

Indicate the locality (or neighbourhood within the locality) to which the
claimed green relates by writing the administrative area or
geographical area by name below and/or by attaching a map on
which the area is clearly marked:

bn the pedsh of Lymiage .

Please tick here if a map is attached (at a scale of 1:10,000): O

Page 13




Note 7
- Applicants should provide a
summary of the case for
.gistration here and enclose a
separate full statement and afl
other evidence including any
witness statements in support of
the application.

This information is not needed if
a landowner is applying to
register the fand as a green
under section 15(8).

7. Justification for application to register the land as a Town or
Village Green : '

,ﬂ‘éqﬂﬁu’)/ }"Omméi, ;G ved cm &~ L‘L&/\Ia 13!’»515 ioa a &;Gn‘n}fiwf\l‘ Aumber o/’
locek paof,le,' and. i rapne&enb an imful’dmf recresbionel amenihy for tle
w‘l\aa&, | | _

TE has beon osed by poishiners for generslione , wilh te ose of ik regried
as & n’&kh ond thorefore this é;],fmw HY \)e,“n\-} made fo gecure that
nﬁhl’ fur fukm: W‘lfm .- :

4@ }.,'QJ,L ;_( Knm l)a mwﬂ ey M"-"‘ PQPU\WIS- G'ﬂeq,{u:" ]:;U"'_AS& .
& ?.ﬁl'\rd\f\ﬁ*ﬂln as .%TLQ &Imtx) Fl‘d—fi‘, and G-F}um‘j M\L@UMPS"‘, '11251
nwmes reflecd te onigoe '*v\vt@m\ollj of the freld, which s not ey en s
Slbpe, \3‘)" C—O’f\\a:-ni Moy ‘m"(’.\ré&hn& JXPS, hbllouj',n';(ﬁﬁf and ‘p{s{-gﬁwl
eodthusordCs. | | |
fase fealores gee fle fran ks Qni:&ue chaom, phore children plag, |
make CMV’FS, ade bikes and 30 sleddmﬁ in te anber, wa.”Qrs, Aoﬁ

: w.“(m, rvanery ond- hovst wdint ose tle lund d-""j s ”“13

d'z;u-@v\ns o the Fov"f)ﬂ”‘r, ol using te 2K ponse a[— te grec.

' ?QMUS‘W‘ " m}* soual\l’ Frvw tle Lﬂ«ldLounm Fvv d‘!-de u&?—&, Mo‘» uie l'\M AN g

beon demied.
716 qt\é’.en e Cowttdng te m[g old pma‘l in the »{“432.%4‘5 .se.umd.
pond s dds b Be oty end hablek valve of tle field,

4his pPp[rfc/?txbn ¢ sopported 09 witness shikerments (see endosed ﬂdﬁkgnﬂ&:ﬂ)
and g SG"»J-;_JL (‘Guﬁ}\'l\‘cﬁhf«’*\ r‘éfmf"‘ d{o(.um@wt' U'IL‘OSQA‘ ‘ ’

Note 8

Use a separate sheet if
necessary. This information is
not needed if a landowner is
applying to register the land as
a green under section 15(8).

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant
charge”, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to be
a town or village green

Accarding o the bomd egishry TiHe Plan K67 4394 (emdosed),

the owmrs wme:  Peler MetlemTory , Svson Amanda i, end Japmas
' Nehlam "rora, 2L of— éhl\d’n&?\:“.

e (Prbperf'n ﬂQa"&S"Q( edse pralkes MW@. te a c]rwn‘l"q Kingum as “7le
'fora f&m)a 'FOJAMM‘, . |

Tt s belieed that tle cumin cam be combacked via: otshte
offia, Ehchinghil Golf Covae, elchinghe,

Page 14




Note 9
List or enter in the form all such

_ declarations that accompany

& application. This can include
any written declarations sent to
the applicant (i.e. a lefter), and’
also any stich declarations
made on the form itself.

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from any
refevant leaseholder of, and of the proprietor of any relevant
charge over, the land

- Note 10

List all supporting consents,
documents and maps
accompanying the application.
Evidence of ownership of the
fand must be included for
Wuntarily registration
«pplications. There is no need
fo submit copies of documents
issued by the Registration
Authority or to-which it was a

. party but they should still he

listed. Use a separate sheet if
necessary.

the Commpnt fagishvlipm Aubunby o a (wler

10. Supporting documentation

Endloted with thic x\p?hu;iim gae
o Acopy of te Lond fegishy Regisle fo TihleMorber iGknsy
i_nclud;\:% a 112,500 scale plom. '

¢ A Avcomant enbted © Justhiation for Ele apphicahion b maiskr
“The Gran, Lgmin‘&t, <t a l/('\143¢ Grezm — ‘mf-ormnﬁm to sapport
QueshenF of form cAa”

e A Copy o{f e (115, 000 map nnolated with tha ndicedive. Tocotions
of the hormes of ?Jé&h}ﬁ%azﬁr&' respondonky | |

, s in exess o}’ so C—emf)(ii'fd éVIdﬂ"‘\CQ Ques")ﬁhm&s 'A'SJ?WFD;’

Vi ﬂﬂée 4% AT?FL\LKtw‘A,

T should be noed Ghat 2ddibimal Ls&ﬁguﬂl( 7/-)&6!\61\#1.((12_! will be senf b

Note 11

List any other matters which’
should be brought to the
attention of the Registration
Authority (in particular if a
person interested in the land is
expected to challenge the
application for registration). Full
details should be given here or
on a separate sheet if
necessary.. '

11. Any other information relating to the application

Tt s believed that ok least o o/'.He Ol 0}’ the Fetd (ILS listed

intle Land by pepen) ave Dieders of ob lossh ome pregarty
M‘*Pﬁw am‘omt‘-} kla.(m as ?enHCMJ. H-ome_g Lid (PQV\HM ’Pn,?yf-;.u
LHL o Similar,

Page 15




Note 12 ' 12. Signature

The application must be signed . '
by each individual applicant, or : : .

/7 the authorised officer of an Slgnature(s)_of applicant(s):
applicant which is a body

corporate or unincorporate. . o
Date: 5"l 2210,

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the truth in presenting the application and accompanymg evidence,
You may commit a ¢criminal offence if you deliberately provide misleading or untrue evidence and if
you do so you may be prosecuted. You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all
associated documentation. ' ' _

Please send your completed application form to:

The Commons Registration Team

{ ent County Council
Countryside Access Service

Invicta House

County Hall

Maidstone

Kent ME14 1XX

Data Protection Act 1998 o

The application and-any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the Commons Registration Authority to disclose information
received from you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Departments,
public bodies, other organisations and members of the pubﬂc

A copy of this form and any accompanying documents may be disclosed upon receipt of a request

for information under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and the Freedom of
‘aformation Act 2000.

Page 16




APPENDIX C

Summary of user evidence

1ybiu sylomauy ‘1syuim ul bulbpals

Mmou ‘Jayjeam 0y Ul pue| Uo SUOSS?| [lembn_
BuiAeld ualipjiyo ‘Bunjem Bop asn Jayi0 ss9| ‘uayo AIap 2] p|noMm siayoeal ‘pJiyo sy sieah Jg rSsIn
Jawim Alens
Buibpajs juam abe|in sjoym ay} aoeid ayy, Buihed ‘Bunjiq sieah ay) Bunjiq urejunow ‘Buryiem
‘Bunjiem asn Ajiep Jayjo usag “Aeme paAow /8-4861 | Jano Ap@am / Ajlieq Bop ‘uaipjiyo se buihed g Buibpa|g sieah J¢ UaIpA S N
Jaxyied
‘JYBIN a1uog ‘Bunjiem siayj0 Alyiuoly suoljelqaleo Jea A MaN ‘Bunyjiepn sleah | a sin
Buibpsjs ‘ybiu alipuoq ‘Bupiq ulelunow ‘Bunjjem siaylo 993 Aneq Jaum ul Buibpajs ‘bBunjiem Bog sieah €z uosqgio Y
Buioho pue NG
BuipAo ‘Buipu ‘Buikeld uaipjiyo ‘Bupjiem asn Jayio IREETY S,ualp|Iyo ‘sytomauly ‘bunjiem boq sieah zz WBUAA L
"}S8Jajul |eoibojoseydJe pue [BOLIOISIY JO 8)IS I JapISuo) uonewJo} pue| buiniasqo Sa|MoUy|
‘Buiues|o puod ‘BuioAo ‘BuiAeld ‘Bupjiem asn JayiQ Ajleq | ‘swuane abejjia ‘BulAeld ‘Bunjiem Bog sieah J SIN % N
Bupjiem siayjo 99g Ajleuoiseas Bunjlepn | sieaAzg 9 | uewnuad |\
dnpjod
Bunjiem ‘Buipu sisy}0 Ajleuoiseasp Buibpajs ‘BuiAeld uaip|iyo ‘Bujiepn sieah oG SIN 8 N
Bumiq 8bplLgPOOAA
‘Buipll @sJoy ‘Bunjiem ‘Ajiep asn 1ayjo usag Ajreq urejunow ‘Buibpals ‘Bunjiem 6og sieah o Ined
saniAoe abej|(Ia ‘Bulpll asioy lleH
saniaoe abejia ‘Bupjiem ‘Buikeld ‘Ajiep asn Jayjo usag ApreamyAjieq ‘Bupjiem Bop ‘syjem ysued Ajyluop sieahge | QSIN®IN
soweb [ooyos ‘seweb
Buipu ‘saweb ‘Bupjiem ‘Ajlep asn Jayjo usasg Ajjeuoiseao 1n0os ‘Buipll asioy ‘Bunjjem 6og sieah J9 sneg r
Bop Bunjiem ‘Buibps|s
Ajlep asn Jayjo usag Ajleuoiseas ‘ualppiyopuelBb yum Bupjiepn sieah €g UaIp) ©
Ajjioey abejjin se pamaln Ajopim usaq sAem|y -bBuibpajs pJiema)s
‘Aejdsip yiomauly ‘Buiheld ‘Bujiem Bop ‘Bunjiem siayjo usag Ajleuoiseasp Buiyolays ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Bupjiepn sieah oG uyopr
‘Buiyoieys ‘uaipjiyopuelb
Buibpajs ‘Bunjiem ‘Buife|d sisyjo usag Alyyuowy/Apespn 9 UaIp[Iyo yum Bunjiepn sieah gg | seuor g sIN
Alyiuow mou
Buisijeroos ‘buiuebboqo) ‘Bunjiem ‘BuiAe|d siayjo usag | ‘Apjeam uay) ‘Alleq Aema|puq uo Buipl asioy ‘Bujiepn sieahk Qf | SUYM\ ueop
Alep abe||iA 0} Jnopoys UOLION
asn Jayjo usag -abe||in o) Aineaq Jo ease Buipue)sinQ Apeapn asn ‘Bupjiem Bop g Bupjiepn sieah /| SIN 8 JIN
abej|In
abe||In ul saoeds 21gnd pasn jsow jo dUQ Buissaooe ‘syjem ainjeu ‘syIomall) 20JaUlID
"0)9 s||ey abej|in ssa22e ‘9]9A0 ‘Yiem ‘Aeld ‘asijeloos ajdoad Ajreq ‘ualp(iyo yum buiheld ‘syjem Ajjwey sieah ¢z nalig
‘Ajluswe |eo0| B S]] ‘|ooyos pue sdoys 0} smaln BuiAolus ‘Buiuebboqoy 20JaylD
Aem uo ‘Buipho ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Buifeld :Ajiep asn Jayjo ueag | Ap@am mou ‘Ajleq ‘ualpiyo yum buiheld ‘Bujiepn sieah yz o
Bunjiem bop ‘Bulpho abpuqgpoopn
‘soluold ‘Buife|d ‘Bunjiem Ajiep siayjo usag INEETY ‘plyo se BuiAeld ‘Buibpajs ‘Bupjiepn sieah gz wepy
3sn 40 3sn 40
SLN3ININOD AJON3INDIAS SALLIALLDY aoniad JINVN

Page 17



Buife|d ‘Bunjiem — Ajlep asn siay}o usssg ApjeamyAjieq yum Buied ‘Bunyem Bop ‘Buyiepn sieah g¢ ouapal4
Buibpas|s abpLIgpoopp
‘looyas Aq asn ‘Buibpa|s ‘BuiAe|d ‘Bupjiem siayjo ussg Aleq ‘Bunjiem ‘Buyiem bop ‘Bulpll 8sIoH sieah g¢ SIN R JIN
w
Buife|d salpnys ainjeu ‘Buiuebboqo) eybuiuuny
‘buiuebboqo) ‘XNg ‘Bunjiem ‘Bunyis ‘Buipeas siayjo ussg Ajreq ‘Buiheld ualpjiyo ‘Bunyem boq sieah 9z | SSINRIN
(dn umoub mou) BuiAeid uaipjiyo uojburey
Buife|d g Bupjjem siayjo usag APeapn ‘syJomauly ‘buibpals ‘bop Bujiepn sieah |z ueounQg
1saJa)ul |eoLioisly 1ealb Buibpa|s ‘pajoho ualp|iyo
Jo eale os|y “Ajiep — saweb |jeq ‘sdnoib noas ‘sAejdsip ‘ajil puod ¥ ainjeu Jnoge ualp|iyod
yiomally ‘Bunpoiuoid ‘Buibpsjs ‘Buljoho ‘Bunjiem sioyio usag Ajreq Buiyoea) ‘ynJy Bupoid ‘Bupjiepn sieah yz | diyd Asied
Jayoing
sylomally asyuoq ‘Buibpsls ‘Bunjjem siayjo usag APeapn Buibpals ‘Buioho ‘Bunyiem Boqg sieah z| sowep
allep\
Anep Bunjiem ‘Buifeld siayjo ussg INEETY sylem Ajiwe} ‘Bupjiem Boqg sieah G| UaAdlS
‘Buiddip BuiAe|d ualpjiyo ‘Buloho ‘uaipjiyo
puod pue syem ainjeN U0 UJP|IYd YOO} pue [ooyosAe|d 1e yym ainjeu Buiholus ‘BuiAiiagyoe|q uojse]
paylopn “Buibpais ‘Bunjiem ‘Buipll 8SI0H :8sn S1ayjo ussg Ajleqg ‘Buibpajs ‘Bunyjem boq sieah zy uesng
a1 )
Buibpais ‘Bunjiq ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Buipu si8yl0 Ajreq lleqioo} ‘Bunjiem ‘Buioho ‘buibpals sieah of SIN 9 JN
"'suos Aw mou g ai| Aw Jo ped usaln XINg
ayl -sdnoub jnoos g qno ‘Bupjiem ‘Buipu 8sIoy SIBYJ0 USAS Ajreq ‘BuiA)y ey ‘Buibpajs ‘Buyiem boq siedA Gy | OIOA e
deays Aq pazeib Ajjeuonipes; sem ‘syosfoud uaJp|iyopuesb g uaip|iyo
Jo} )1 8sn jooyds ‘Buiheld uaip|iyo g Bupjiem siayjo 89 Ajleuoiseas yum Buife|d ‘Buiyiem Bop ‘Bunyiepn sieah Qg MET BISA
BuiAiagyoe|q ‘bunjiem bop ‘Bunjem
uaaln) ay} pakolua JINpe sy "saaJ) Buiquiljo ‘suosss|
aney Ajlwej Jo suonesauab anl4 -buifed ‘sdnoib 1noos pIyo alnjeu jooyos ‘saweb ||eq ‘sdwed
‘Buiuuny ‘Buibpajs ‘Buneys ‘BulpAo ‘Buipu 8sloy sIaylo 98 se Ajiep {Apjeapp Bunjew ‘Buibpsjs buiAeld :pjiyo sy sieak oG ling usjaH
XINg ‘Buiddip
puod ‘pjiyo se Buike|d ‘Buyjem
Buipl asioy ‘Bujiem Bop siayjo usss usyQ Ajleuoiseas ‘Buipll ax1q ‘soluoid ‘Buibpalg sieah 09 | ulue d SIN
Bunjiem bop poom||IS
Buipl 8sioy sJayjo usag Ajleuoiseas ‘Bunjiem ‘Buibpajs ‘suods jooyosg sieak 0/ NS
abe||IA [|e 0} sjiyauaq aAsod a|gelnseawiul
‘suonelausb aAIsS80oNs 40} AHUNWWOD Jo ed |elbaju| BuiAuagyoe|q ‘Jsiuim
"'sasn Jualaylp yim sabe |e ‘ualp|iyo ‘siayjem — ajdoad Noom ul Buibpajs ‘Buloho ‘saweb Ajiwey AojunH
JO WEeaJ)S JUBJSUOD 89S UBD R puB| 8y} SY0O0|I9A0 9SNOH e sawl ¢ xoiddy | ‘Bupjiem Bop ‘[leH abejjia 03 Bunjepn siealk g S SIN
enodwi aoe(d |nyaoead Buo
pue 1ainp -bBuipl 8sioy pue Bupjiem ‘Ajiep sieyjo ussg Aeap Buyem ‘Buyem boq sieah g rJpwo BaA
pue| pazelb aouo desyg -buibpsjs g Bunjjem Bop siayi0 Alyiuop Ajwey yum buiuebboqo g Bunjiepn sieah gz Aojuels O
JayuIm Ul Buibpals Jayjo 993 Alyuop Ajlwey g spuauy yum Bunjiepn sieah gz | sso1D g SIN

Page 18



|ooyos

Alewld yjim sasse|o Le ‘Jajuim diiud
Ajiep Buipu asioy ‘soluaid ‘Bupjjem siayjo 88 Alquopy uaym Buibpais ‘soluaid ‘Buijiepn sieah Gz euibioss
dn App -oul
BuiA)} ey ‘Buisijeroos obeione SjuaA® Ajlunwiwod ‘sjies; apinb 16 uoxo4
‘BuiAeld ualp|iyo ‘Bulpho ‘Bunjiem sAep }sow sIayjo 89S uo Apjeapn | “Jeuim ul Buibpals ‘Buijoho ‘Bunjiepn sieah ¢ |[oBYDIN
Sjuana ooppid
sjuana ||ey abejia ‘BuljpAo ‘Buipu ‘Bupjiem Ajiep siayjo 89S A@apn | Anunwiwod ‘yainyod Bunisia ‘Buijiepn sieak ¢¢ uyor
3000Ee9d
Ajiep BuiAeld g Bupjiem siayjo 9 Alyiuop Buibpajs ‘Buniq ‘Bunjiep sieah 9z aoualneT
Apj@am aq 0y pasn uosAe|n
Buife|d ‘Buioho ‘Buipl asioy ‘Bupjiem Ajiep siayjo 98 ‘Apuaoal Ajleqg Bunjiem 6og sieah Oof Joues|g
pIyo se Ajuanbauy BuipAo
Buife|d ‘Bupjem ‘Buipl 8sioy Ajiep siayjo 8ag alow ‘Ajyjuo ‘Bunyiem Bop ‘pjiyo se Buiked sieah o¢ | sBBuo Ago |
Jjuiyy piopoeH
BuiAe|d ‘Buioho ‘BuiAiagyoelq ‘Bupjiem Ajiep sieyio 99g Ajreq 0} aoe|d ‘BuiAliagyoe|q ‘Bunjiepn sieah z| uelpy
Ajleuoiseas Buife|d ‘Bunyiem boq sieak Gz | usjeypn aop
Apeapn | Jeruim ul Buluebboqoy ‘sbop Buiyepn sieah gz uoyaio
AloAIsuaxa
pue| a8y} asn sdnoib |ea0] apinb ¥ 1n0os |le ¥ dnoib 1noos Jawiwins uj aiow "0)8 sdnoub sqno
Janeag [eo0| ay) unt | -Buipl ‘spods ‘Bunjjem siayjo 99 ‘yiuow B 99Im | ‘salpn)s alnjeu ‘sjuny ainseal | sieah Gz A4 sIn
asnoelud Japegpea
[leqiooy} ‘buiA)y ayy ‘buroAo ‘Bujiem Bop Ajiep siayjo a9g INEETY spods Joj sasn uospuelb ‘Bupjiepp sieah Q| rSIN 9 JN
Bunjiq urejunow ‘Buiuebboqoy Ag|palio
Bunjiq ‘ssweb s, uaip|iyo ‘Bunjiem Bop Ajlep siayio ussg INEETY ‘Bunyjem Bop ‘Buipl asioH sieah g| rSIN % IN
uaJpjiys
Ajleuoiseosdo ypm syjjem ainjeu ‘Bupjiem bop playwoo|g
Buipu asioy ‘Buioho ‘Bupjiem Ajiep siayjo usag JApteapn | ‘Aejd g saweb 1oy [ooyos-aid usye | sieah Q| a sin
Buijies aineu AanleH
Bunjiem Bop ‘BuloAo ‘Buikeld Ajlep siayjo 99g WSEETY ‘Bunyord §nuy ‘uslp|iyo yum bBuikeld sieah z| ewwg
ueiy
Buife|d uaip|iyo ¥ Bupjiem Ajiep siayjo 9ag IREETY Bunjiem 6og sieah ¢ SIN 8 N
Buiuebboqo ‘sjieq; ainjeu Buiuebboqoy ‘Bunjiem
uo g BuiAeld uaipjiyo ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Bunjiem Ajiep siayjo aag Ajreq Bop ‘Buiyoiem ainjeu ‘Buyiepn sieak 9 | J9|IN yeles
BuioAo ‘ualp|iyo yum
Buife|d ‘Bunjiem Ajiep siayjo asg ApreamyAjieq BuiAe|d ‘Bunyem Bop ‘Buipu asIoH siealg| oe|0) |IID
‘Buoid 3nJ4 ‘Buiuebboqoy
Buife|d ‘Bunjiem ‘Ajiep siayjo 99g ApreamyAjieq ‘Buipl asioy ‘Bunjiem 6og sieah Gz puowp3 Yy
Ajep - buibpsjs ‘buife|d STE
uaJp|iyo ‘ssweb ‘Buipll asioy ‘BuljpAo ‘Bunyiem siayjo usag INEETY alnjeu ‘Buyoid uniy ‘Bunjiem Bog seaA gl | spjouhay d
Buibpajs ‘uaipjiyopuelb g uaipjiyo Jashan

Page 19



sellAnoe
gn) % JaAneag yum djay ‘puod

Anep Jawiwins uj aiow Buriojdxa ‘mous ul buiuebboqo)

- Bupjiem ‘ssweb [jeq ‘Buipu ay1q ‘Buipu 8sioy SIaylo 993 “Yoam e sawly ¢/z | ‘Buipu a)iq ‘ualpiyo yum saweb |eg sieah 0z | 91k) uesng

J9JUIM Buimous auinogsO

ul Buibpsjs ‘Buipu ‘Bujiem siayjo aas ‘shejdsip aiyuog Ajreq uaym Buibpsjs ‘Buiuuny ‘Bupjiepn sieah gz Youjed

EED Joam saweb Jawwns g saweb Jajuim aulogsO

Buninp Buiiquiels ‘BunoAo ‘Buiuuna ‘Bunjiem Bop siayjo 885 | B 821m] Mou ‘Ajieq ‘Buiuuny ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Bunjiepn sieah gz pJiemp3
Bunjiem Bop ‘sayy Al} ‘puod ul

Bupjord jinuy ‘seweb sjeoq Ao} ‘Jeyuim ui abpajs ‘ualp|iyo A9jjunH

‘BulA)y 811y ‘saniAnoe 1n0as ‘BuloAo ‘Bupjiem Ajiep siayio 89g Ajreq yim Aeid ‘Bupjoid jinyy ‘Buiuuny sieah Jz SN

mous ul buibpa|s ‘Bulh}} sewoy |

uoneasoal [eiouab ‘Bunjiem siayjo o9 Alre@ | a1y ‘soluoid ‘uoiieasoal ‘Buriem 6oQq sieahk L | N SIN S IN

usug.0

Jayum ul Buibpais ‘Buipu ‘Bunjem Ajlep siayjo 9ag Areq Ajiwey yum Bupjiepn sieak g SIN % JIN
Builiagyoelq

Ajiep Buifeld g Bupjiem siayjo a9 Alqiuopy ‘sayIy uo sqno Buiyel ‘Buyjem 6oq sieak 9 | 9IOA Q SIN
PIIYyd umo
mous ul Buibpajs ‘sayiq ‘BulAly a1y ‘sdnoib JabunoA uaym YlIM sjied) ainjeu ‘Bunjiem ‘1ajuim

|[ooyos Alewlid g jooyos-ald ‘Buipu ‘Bunjiem siayjo 995 | aiow ‘Ajjeuoisead ul Buibpajs ‘p|Iyo se aiay) paie|d sieah 9¢ MOT [ SIN

Buipl asioy J8bunoA uaym Jajum ul buiuebboqoy auinogsO

‘saweb Buifeld ‘Buijpho ‘Buijiem sAep jsow sisyjo 89g alow ‘Alyjuoln ‘saweb ‘Buloko ‘Bupjiem Bog sieah Jz uiweluag
Aleinbas pue| asn sdnolb apinb saljAloe g saweb 1o} sasn

9 1N09s Jay1Q “Bulquel ‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Buipu siaylo 993 Yoam e sawl €-Z 9 Jopes| apinb 16 ‘Bupjem Boqg sieah || | Joyeg v SIN

sAe(dsip yiomauly

‘BuiAeld uaip|iyo ‘Buipu asioy ‘Buloho ‘Bupjiem siayjo 99 IREETY Bupjiem aunsia| ‘Bujiem boq sieah || | uely uiney
Ae|dsip yiomauiy

Apep — BuiAeld uaipjiyo ‘Buipu ‘Buiuuni siayjo 8ag INEETY ‘Buntoid Auagyoelq ‘Bunjiem Bog sieah || uely eie|

sAep 1sow ‘Buipu asioy ‘BuljoAo ‘Bunjjem siayjo 99 WNEETY syem [eiauab ‘Bunjiem Bog sieah || uehAy g JN

pooMm|IIS

Bunjjem siayjo 89g Ajjeuoiseas Jayuim ul buibpais ‘Bunjiepn sieah 6g M3IpUY

pooypjiyo ul Buipoon

Bupjiem ‘BuipAo ‘Buipu sAep jsow siayjo 89g SS9| ‘Mou Apjespn Jayuim ul Buibpals g Bunjiepn sieah g¢ wed

WBIUMON

Buipu ‘Bunjiem Ajjeuoisead0o siayjo 9ag Ajjeuoiseas Bunjiem Bog sieah g ain

siseq Ajiep — Jajuim J9dieH

ul Buibpals ‘Buife|d uaip|iyo ‘siapu asioy ‘siayem Bop a9 MNEETY Bupjiep sieah ¢ | Y SIN R IN
Buyoid )nJy ‘Buluunl “JBJUIM U| Buiniasqo aylpIim

Buibpajs ‘Bunyig ‘Buipll asioy ‘Bunjiem Bop Ajiep sieyio aa8g Ajreq | ‘Buiyorem paiq ‘Bunjem Bop ‘Buiuuny sieak Q| | odunjy yuey

SAIYSHIM

Buipu asioy ‘Buppoiuoid ‘Buikeld ‘Bupjiem siayjo 89S Ajjeuoiseas Bunjiepn sieak G| uesng

Page 20



uoSsuIyoINH
JouIm Ul Buibpais ‘Bupjiepn siaylo 89S Ayiuop Bunjiepn sieah g uaiey]
MOU
uayo - Bupjjem bop SS9| ‘||lewsS aJam | JajuIM Ul uny mous g Buibpajs ‘Bulhy
Jajum ul Buibpais ‘Buloho ‘Buiheld ‘Buipu 8sloy S18yl0 985 | UBIP|IYD USYM S)07 a1y ‘Buiheld uaupjiyo ‘Bujiem boq siealh G| 1oy yew
pue| pasn Ajenbal pue s,0g6|
Jajum ui Buibpajs ‘Aejdsip yiomauly ulI gnio YyinoA uey -bulliagyoe|q A9pjunHy
‘Bupjiem ‘Buikeld ‘sexiq ‘Buipu asioy : siayjo Ag asn Ajieqg Ap1eamy Ajieqg ‘maln Buiwpe ‘Buifeld ‘Bupjiepn sieah gz Jayuuar
Bumiq
uoseas ul builuagyoe|q urejunow ‘Jajuim ul buiuebboqo 900D
» Buiuebboqoy ‘Buipl ‘Buiheld ‘Bunjem Bop Ajiep sieylo aag Ajreq ‘ualpiyo yum buifeld ‘Bunjiem 6og sieah gz | -lunyH pineq
Ajleuoiseosdo
mous ul Buibpajs ‘bBupyiq ‘Buipu siayjo 99 mou Ap@apn ainjeu ydeibojoyd ‘Bupjiepn sieah Jz Ao sIN
pasnjaJ {pJeydlo jeunwwod Joy pue| jo ued buises| a1 1002 Buisijeloos “Jajuim
Jaumo payoeolddy ‘sjuans abe||Ia ‘sieneag/sqno Agq asn JBJUIM Ul SS9| ul Buiuebboqoy ‘saJyuoq abe||ia UoS|IAA
‘Bunjiem Bop ‘Buipl asioy ‘Bupyiq ‘BuiAeld uaipjiyo ass Ajieq ‘Jawwns ul Ajlreqg ‘Aeid s .uaipiyo ‘Bupjiem |elousn) sieah G| diiud
MOUs ul Buibpajs spiy
SJBpLI pue sigyem as8s Aleq Ajreq ‘salagoe|q bupjold ‘Bunjiem Bog sieah g | uoiseq o JN
asn |euoIseod0 ‘BuljoAo s .uaipjiyo
Jauim ul BuiuebBoqoy ‘sanianoe sqno ‘bulhe|d MOU ‘ualip|iyo ‘Bunods ainjeu ‘BulAiiegyoe|q auloqsQ
‘BulfoAo ‘Buipll asioy ‘Bunyiem — Ajlep asn siayjo 99g | pue Bop yum Ajleqg ‘Bop 1noym  yum Bunjjepp sieah gz eulbloan)
MOLpUSH
Bunjiq ‘Bunjiem siayjo 99g Ajleuoiseas Jajuim uil Buibpsjs ‘Bunjiepn sieah ey | Y SINRIN

Page 21



146000

145000

144000

143000

142000

141000

140000

139000

614000 615000 616000
3 —
nes \\ i ’ - f & : 2 - P
i \ . R " ! ;.«’E!J{_
< Y | Wheelbarrow 9%, 7 2 ,4Elhampat
p k S~ Town Vi ko R i
: \'.r,' .
U

APPENDIX D:
Plan showing area within which
users reside

b

oMillhill
Fm

{‘iiaiiiIIIIIIIIP' ; P/ :

_ YBereforstal ¥

o F?] "
/

>

r

/
!
‘

;“fﬁdo

‘" (ham

1
H ) \\
- t q q 0 * e
| F;mp o_n’/ ?;)phcahon site ’ v L x‘l;/ 1 8 "
Fn@ o Broad’ Stréet §4105 "X 178
y u" / AR / ﬂ
A ; oy | ;
‘ 9 L_: b )‘/' i \" '." X, / "
e . .81 -Postling: 4 il (1
3 R 7 ., Woogd™ 0\ 7 7 Ne kb 3 — -
- Noy: Wor 3 eWwbarn? &
S > TN TR roamiee, U gt
e g Sdm—in, P e\ A\
Tl oS (@B -
E— k, A I_‘b" ; " -
"“““/ N S S 17155
. + v i

- Etchinghill
] o)

' el -
( g it :}l:é\l, =" M
e o v 5 7 % B,
, Application site 7 ot >
1 i 1 0 h p 44
. 2 o G 7 LRI,
L. , = - N &
N —---- Parish Boundary [ e A e =
/ 4 E— - Euﬁ;s#’,' 181 g e i i 5 4
Ens' i sed upen Ordnance Survey materiall fiththepermigsion,offd e Survey-an behalf of the Cohtroier LAty v
: %Ms&' ry Office (c) Crown Copyri - f%[%f_f’[d 2 v | b AR
rfa'u'{horiid reproduycti "fringes_-Crown Copyrigfit an tOikl% ivil proceedings. Licg !
TR g L +- Haalt = :
U U
614000 615000 616000 617000 618000

145000

144000

143000

142000

141000

140000

139000




Agenda ltem 4

Application to register land known as Seaton Meadow at
Wickhambreaux as a new Village Green

A report by the Head of Countryside Access Service to Kent County Council's
Regulation Committee Member Panel on Tuesday 15" November 2011.

Recommendation: | recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into
the case to clarify the issues.

Local Members: Mr. M. Northey Unrestricted item

Introduction

1. The County Council has received an application to register land known as Seaton
Meadow at Wickhambreaux as a new Town or Village Green from the
Wickhambreaux Parish Council (“the Applicant’). The application, made on 28"
June 2010, was allocated reference number VGAG27. A plan of the site is shown at
Appendix A to this report and a copy of the application form is attached at
Appendix B.

Procedure

2. The application has been made under section 15 of the Commons Act 2006 and the
Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008.

3. Section 15(1) of the Commons Act 2006 enables any person to apply to a
Commons Registration Authority to register land as a Town or Village Green where
it can be shown that:

‘a significant number of the inhabitants of any locality, or of any
neighbourhood within a locality, have indulged as of right in lawful sports
and pastimes on the land for a period of at least 20 years;

4. In addition to the above, the application must meet one of the following tests:
* Use of the land has continued ‘as of right' until at least the date of
application (section 15(2) of the Act); or
» Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended no more than two years prior to the
date of application, e.g. by way of the erection of fencing or a notice (section
15(3) of the Act); or
« Use of the land ‘as of right’ ended before 6" April 2007 and the application
has been made within five years of the date the use ‘as of right’ ended (section
15(4) of the Act).

5. As a standard procedure set out in the Regulations, the Applicant must notify the
landowner of the application and the County Council must notify every local
authority. The County Council must also publicise the application in a newspaper
circulating in the local area and place a copy of the notice on the County Council’s
website. In addition, as a matter of best practice rather than legal requirement, the
County Council also places copies of the notice on site to provide local people with

Page 23



the opportunity to comment on the application. The publicity must state a period of
at least six weeks during which objections and representations can be made.

The application site

6. The area of land subiject to this application (“the application site”) is known locally
as Seaton Meadow and is situated on the south-eastern fringes of the village of
Wickhambreaux, although, officially, the land itself falls within the neighbouring
parish of Ickham and Well. The application has therefore been made by the
Wickhambreaux Parish Council, but it has the full support of Ickham and Well
Parish Council.

7. The application site consists of approximately 8.5 hectares (21 acres) of grazing
land, with the Little Stour river running across its centre. A plan showing the
application site is attached at Appendix A.

8. Access to the application site is via three stiles in the fencing bordering Seaton
Road, giving access to Public Footpath CB184 which is formed of two sections
crossing the northern part of the application site. However, in early 2010, fencing
was erected along the footpath, thereby cutting off access to the river and the
meadow.

The case

9. The application has been made on the grounds that the application site has
become a Town or Village Green by virtue of the actual use of the land by the local
inhabitants for a range of recreational activities ‘as of right’ for more than 20 years.

10.In support of the application, 115 user evidence questionnaires (some
supplemented by statements) were submitted detailing the recreational use of the
application site, as well as various charts and plans showing the application site
and the use of it. A summary of the evidence submitted in support of the application
is attached at Appendix C.

11.Also included with the application were letters of support from Ickham and Well
Parish Council, County Councillor Mr. M. Northey, City Councillor B. Staley, the
Ickham, Littlebourne and Wickhambreaux Conservation Society, St. Andrew’s
Church Wickhambreaux, Wickhambreaux Church of England Primary School, and
the Wickhambreaux Village Hall Management Committee. In summary, the letters
of support refer to use of the application site without restriction by many generations
of local residents for recreational pursuits.

Consultations

12.Consultations have been carried out as required. The Ickham and Well Parish
Council wrote to reiterate its support for the application, whilst Canterbury City
Council wrote to confirm that they had no proprietary interest in the application site
and had no comment to make on the application itself.

13.During the consultation period, objections to the application were received from

three local residents, disputing recreational use of the application site and raising
concerns regarding the future grazing of cattle on the land.

Page 24



14.A representation has also been received from Mr. J. Holdstock, who has been the
tenant farmer of the land since 1991, providing an account of his knowledge of the
application site. Mr. Holdstock explains that, in his experience, there has not been
significant public access to the application site (as this would otherwise interfere
with his use of the land for grazing) and any use of the application site has been
predominantly on the designated footpaths. He adds that the most common
digression from this is people walking along the northern bank of the Little Stour,
only very occasionally venturing to the south of the river. Mr. Holdstock confirms
that permission to use the land has been obtained for exceptional use (such as
parking for village events) and that the closure of the application site due to foot-
and-mouth would have led to an interruption to use.

Landowners

15. Historically, the site was owned for many centuries by the Church Commissioners
and was let for grazing (mainly cattle). In 2009, the land was put up for auction and
purchased by a consortium of individuals who divided the land into plots. A plan
showing the current position with regard to ownership is attached at Appendix D.

16.All four of the current landowners have made representations in respect of the
application (“the Objectors”).

Mr. S. van de Vyer

17.Mr. van de Vyer owns part of the application site which abuts the southern side of
the Little Stour. This area of land is registered with the Land Registry under title
number K965436.

18.Mr. van de Vyer wrote to express concerns regarding the proposed change in
status of the land leading to the cessation of cattle farming. The land should, in his
view, remain a grazing field.

Mr. and Mrs. D. Pierce

19.Mr. and Mrs. Pierce own an area of land that is situated on the western part of the
application site. This area of land is registered with the Land Registry under title
number K965680.

20.Mr. and Mrs. Pierce have lived adjacent to the application site for 11 years and
state that, during this time, they have only ever seen friends and neighbours
walking on the land. That vast majority follow a linear route between the stiles
following the river bank and only very seldom does anyone cross the river to access
the land to the south of it. Any use of the land for dog walking has been with the
permission of the tenant farmer (who has also challenged such use on occasion)
and has not taken place when cattle were in the field.

21.Mr. and Mrs. Pierce object to the application on the basis that they have not
witnessed any of the lawful sports and pastimes referred to in the application taking
place on the land and, in their view, claims of such use have been exaggerated and
misrepresented in the application.

Page 25



Mr. R. Locke

22.Mr. R. Locke is one of the trustees of the Premier Trust, which owns a parcel of
land at the southernmost part of the application site. This area of land is registered
with the Land Registry under title number K965417.

23.Mr. Locke objects to the application on the basis that any alleged recreational use
of the application site has not taken place continuously because people have not
accessed the site when it has been in use for grazing. He accepts that particular
individuals have occasionally trespassed off the footpath and walked along the river
bank, however, such use has involved following a defined track, which is more akin
to the use of a footpath.

24.Mr. Locke adds that his land can only be accessed by crossing the river. There is
no bridge and, most of the year, the river is in full flow and cannot be crossed
without wading through. As such, for significant periods throughout the year, this
part of the application site has been inaccessible to recreational users.

Mr. and Mrs. M. Perkins

25.An objection to the application has been received Mr. and Mrs. Perkins who own a
piece of land on the northern part of the application site, between the Little Stour
river and Seaton Road. This area of land is registered with the Land Registry under
title number K965437.

26.The objection is made on the following grounds:

e That use of the application site has been by virtue of permission granted by the
tenant farmer for specific activities (such as car parking for community and
private functions). Permission can also be implied through the actions of the
tenant farmer, such as the locking of the gate and the erection of electric fencing
on the site;

e That use of the application site has been challenged by the tenant farmer, who
has on occasion asked people to leave;

e That intensive grazing of the land is incompatible with recreational rights and
recreational users deferred to the grazing and amended their behaviour
accordingly. The land has been commercially grazed on a continuous basis for
the whole of the grazing season for at least 80 years;

e That there has not been a full and uninterrupted period of 20 years’ use due to
rotational grazing and river flooding. The river area provides a source of drinking
water and is therefore heavily poached by the cattle. Large parts of the land
have been inaccessible during periods of flooding (particularly in 2000/2001);

e That use of the application site has been almost exclusively by recreational
walkers who use it as an extended walk through the area. Other activities
referred to in the application, such as picnics and paddling, are an extension of
footpath use, and are of an infrequent and ad hoc nature.

Legal tests
27.In dealing with an application to register a new Town or Village Green the County

Council must consider the following criteria:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

Page 26



(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

(d) Whether use of the land ‘as of right’ by the inhabitants has continued up until the
date of application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or (4)?

(e) Whether use has taken place over period of twenty years or more?

| shall now take each of these points and elaborate on them individually:
(a) Whether use of the land has been ‘as of right'?

28.The definition of the phrase ‘as of right' has been considered by the House of
Lords. Following the judgement in the Sunningwell’ case, it is considered that if a
person uses the land for a required period of time without force, secrecy or
permission (“nec vi, nec clam, nec precario”), and the landowner does not stop him
or advertise the fact that he has no right to be there, then rights are acquired.

29.In this case, there is no suggestion that the informal recreational use of the
application site during the relevant material period has been in exercise of force or
in secrecy. There is, however, a question as to whether recreational use has been
permissive and the effect of alleged verbal challenges by the tenant farmer.

Permission

30.The objector’s stance is that any recreational use of the application site has been
by virtue of permission, express or implied, from the tenant farmer. It is stated that
permission has been sought for formal events and that permission can be implied
by the actions of the tenant farmer in managing his land and in allowing recreational
use to continue on the land.

31.1t is the applicant’s case that, whilst accepting that permission has been sought for
exceptional use of the land (e.g. car parking), the recreational use of the application
site has taken place without any permission from either the tenant farmer or the
landowners.

32.As a general rule, in order for permission to be effective in defeating an application
for the registration of land as a Village Green, it is important that the granting of
such permission is communicated to those using the land. In some cases, it might
be possible for permission to be inferred by the conduct of the landowner, but it will
not be possible to infer permission from mere inaction on the part of a landowner
with knowledge of the use to which the land is being put.

33.This issue was explored in the Beresford? case, in which it was held that “a
landowner may so conduct himself as to make clear, even in the absence of any
express statement, notice or record, that the inhabitants’ use of the land is pursuant
to his permission. This may be done, for example, by excluding the inhabitants on
occasional days: the landowner in this way asserts his right to exclude, and so
makes plain that the inhabitants’ use on other occasions occurs because he does

" R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
% R v City of Sunderland ex parte Beresford [2003] UKHL 60 at paragraph 5

Page 27



not choose on this occasions to exercise his right to exclude and so permits such

use .

34.In order for permission for informal recreation to be implied, therefore, it will be
necessary to demonstrate that the land has, periodically, been closed to the
exclusion of the recreational users. There is insufficient evidence in this case to
suggest that this has been the case at Seaton Meadow.

Challenges to use

35.The objectors also make reference to incidents where recreational use of the
application site has been challenged by the tenant farmer, who has had occasion to
ask people to leave the land. This is strongly disputed by the applicant, who states
that the examples of challenges cited by the objectors relate to isolated incidents of
inconsiderate use (such as children worrying the cattle) rather than to general
recreational use by the local residents.

36. Therefore, on the issue of whether use of the application site has been ‘as of right’,
the evidence as a whole suggests that use has taken place ‘as of right’, although
further investigation of the alleged challenges is required before it is possible to
reach an informed conclusion.

(b) Whether use of the land has been for the purposes of lawful sports and
pastimes?

37.Lawful sports and pastimes can be commonplace activities including dog walking,
children playing, picnicking and kite-flying. It is not necessary to demonstrate that
both sporting activities and pastimes have taken place since the phrase ‘lawful
sports and pastimes’ has been interpreted by the Courts as being a single
composite group rather than two separate classes of activities®.

38.Legal principle does not require that rights of this nature be limited to certain
ancient pastimes (such as maypole dancing) or for organised sports or communal
activities to have taken place. The Courts have held that ‘dog walking and playing
with children [are], in modern life, the kind of informal recreation which may be the
main function of a village green’”.

39.1In this case, the evidence demonstrates that the land has been used for a wide
range of recreational activities, including walking (with or without dogs), picnics,
paddling, playing with children, kite-flying and nature observation. The summary of
evidence of use by local residents at Appendix C shows the full range of activities
claimed to have taken place.

40.The objectors assert that they have not witnesses any significant recreational use of
the application site by local residents and also dispute that some of alleged
activities took place: the disputed activities include kite flying (due to the presence
of overhead power cables), ball games (due to the topography of the site) and
swimming (due to the depth of the river). The applicants contend that there is a

* R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER 385
* R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1995] 70 P&CR 487 at 508 and approved by Lord Hoffman
in R v. Oxfordshire County Council and another, ex parte Sunningwell Parish Council [1999] 3 All ER
385

Page 28



significant body of evidence of use and that there is evidence of use for those
activities that are disputed by the objectors.

Public Footpath CB184

41.The majority of the use of the application site has been for the purposes of walking
and this raises questions in relation to the existence of the two sections of Public
Footpath CB184 running across the northern part the application site. Use of a
defined route that constitutes a recorded Public Footpath is use that is in exercise
of an existing right and cannot give rise to any further rights. Similarly, use of a
defined track (as opposed to wandering at will over a piece of land) will also give
rise to the presumption that the users are asserting a right of passage rather than a
general right to recreate.

42.The issue was considered by the Courts in Laing Homes®, in which the judge said
that: ‘it is important to distinguish between use that would suggest to a reasonable
landowner that the users believed they were exercising a public right of way to
walk, with or without dogs... and use that would suggest to such a landowner that
the users believed that they were exercising a right to indulge in lawful sports and
pastimes across the whole of the fields’.

43.In this case, there is a dispute as to the extent of footpath-related use. The
objectors assert that the vast majority of the recreational use of the application site
is (or is associated with) walking along the existing footpaths. Such use is in
exercise of an existing right and cannot give rise to a general right of recreation
across the whole of the application site.

44 .However, the applicant’s position is that, although the land is accessed via the
footpath stiles, walkers generally walk away from the designated footpaths which
are little used by local people. Some of the walkers have preferred routes devised
according to personal preference, whilst others wander more freely across the
application site. With the exception of a visible track along the northern bank of the
river, there are no other identifiable tracks (so as to suggest use along linear
footpath-type routes) on the application site.

45.The exercise of distinguishing between types of use is something that is very
difficult to achieve on paper. It is a question of evidence that requires more detailed
scrutiny, preferably by way of the cross examination of witnesses in a public forum.

(c) Whether use has been by a significant number of inhabitants of a particular
locality, or a neighbourhood within a locality?

46.The right to use a Town or Village Green is restricted to the inhabitants of a locality
or of a neighbourhood within a locality and it is therefore important to be able to
define this area with a degree of accuracy so that the group of people to whom the
recreational rights are attached can be identified.

47.The definition of locality for the purposes of a village green application has been the
subject of much debate in the courts and there is still no definite rule to be applied.

® R (Laing Homes) v Buckinghamshire County Council [2003] 3 EGLR 70 at 79 per Sullivan J.
Page 29



In the Cheltenham Builders® case, it was considered that *..at the very least,
Parliament required the users of the land to be the inhabitants of somewhere that
could sensibly be described as a locality... there has to be, in my judgement, a
sufficiently cohesive entity which is capable of definition’. The judge later went on to
suggest that this might mean that locality should normally constitute ‘some legally
recognised administrative division of the county’.

48.0n the subject of neighbourhood, the Courts have held that ‘it is common ground

that a neighbourhood need not be a recognised administrative unit. A housing
estate might well be described in ordinary language as a neighbourhood... The
Registration Authority has to be satisfied that the area alleged to be a
neighbourhood has a sufficient degree of cohesiveness; otherwise the word
“neighbourhood” would be stripped of any real meaning’” .

49 At part 6 of the application form, the applicant specifies the relevant locality and

neighbourhood as “the neighbourhood of Wickhambreaux village with Seaton
hamlet, within the localities of Wickhambreaux and Ickham parishes”

50.The objectors do not seek to challenge the application on the basis of the

51.

52.

locality/neighbourhood relied upon by the applicant and make no detailed
submission about this part of the legal tests.

In this case, both the parishes of Wickhambreaux and Ickham and Well constitute
legally recognised administrative units. The village of Wickhambreaux (as distinct
from the wider parish) and the hamlet of Seaton are clearly identifiable
neighbourhoods. Case law suggests that an applicant may rely on two or more
qualifying neighbourhoods within a locality or localities®. Therefore, the
neighbourhoods and localities relied upon by the applicant would appear to satisfy
the legal tests.

“a significant number”

The word “significant” in this context does not mean considerable or substantial: ‘a
neighbourhood may have a very limited population and a significant number of the
inhabitants of such a neighbourhood might not be so great as to properly be
described as a considerable or a substantial number... what matters is that the
number of people using the land in question has to be sufficient to indicate that the
land is in general use by the community for informal recreation rather than
occasional use by individuals as trespassers’®. Thus, what is a ‘significant number’
will depend upon the local environment and will vary in each case depending upon
the location of the application site.

53.0n the basis of the evidence forms submitted by the applicant, there would appear

to have been use by a significant number of local residents. The evidence
submitted in support of the application suggests that a significant number of local
residents have used the application site on a regular or daily basis. However, as
stated above, there is a dispute between the applicant and objectors as to nature

°R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 90
"R (Cheltenham Builders Ltd.) v South Gloucestershire District Council [2004] 1 EGLR 85 at page 92
® | eeds Group PLC v Leeds City Council [2010] EWHC 810 at paragraph 97

° R (Alfred McAlpine Homes Ltd.) v Staffordshire County Council [2002] EWHC 76 at paragraph 71

Page 30



and frequency of recreational use on the application site. This is therefore a
question which requires further examination.

(d) Whether use of the land by the inhabitants is continuing up until the date of
application or meets one of the criteria set out in sections 15(3) or (4)?

54. The Commons Act 2006 requires use of the land to have taken place ‘as of right’ up
until the date of application or, if such use has ceased prior to the making of the
application, to fulfil one of the alternative criterion set out in sections 15(3) and
15(4) of the 2006 Act (as set out at paragraph 4 above).

55.In this case, use of the application site as a whole was challenged in 2010 by the
erection of fencing along the footpath. If the recreational use of a piece of land
ceases to be ‘as of right’ before an application for the registration of the land as a
new Village Green is made, the applicant has a two year period of grace during
which an application can be made (see section 15(3)).

56.In this case, it is the erection of the fencing that appears to have triggered the
Village Green application. The fencing was erected in February/March 2010, and
the Village Green application was made in June 2010. Therefore, the application
has been made well within the two-year period of grace prescribed by Parliament,
and this test is therefore met.

(e) Whether use has taken place over a period of twenty years or more?

57.In order to qualify for registration, it must be shown that the land in question has
been used for a full period of twenty years. The twenty year period is calculated
retrospectively from either the date of the application or, where use of the
application site ceased to be as of right prior to the making of the application, the
date upon which use of the application site ceased to be ‘as of right'.

58.In this case, it has been established that the recreational use of the application site
as a whole ceased to be ‘as of rightt when the fencing was erected in
February/March 2010. On the face of it, therefore, the relevant twenty-year period is
therefore 1990 to 2010 (but note the impact of foot and mouth closure, discussed
below).

Continuous use

59.There is a dispute as to whether recreational use of the application site has taken
place for a full and uninterrupted period of twenty years. This dispute relates to the
use of the application site for grazing purposes and flooding which has taken place
on the land.

60.1t is argued by the objectors that the use of the land for grazing purposes has
discouraged recreational use of the land when the cattle were on the land, and it is
alleged that the vast majority of local residents would avoid using the land when the
cattle were present. This is strongly refuted by the applicant, who states that use of
the land for recreational purposes was not affected by the presence of the cattle
and there is evidence from numerous local residents who refer specifically to the
presence of the cattle on the land during their usage; far from being a deterrent, the
cattle were in some cases an attraction.

Page 31



61.The objectors also argue that use of the land for recreational purposes would
necessarily have been interrupted during periods of flooding. In particular, during
the floods of 2000/2001, the land would have been inaccessible for many months
due to flooding.

62. The applicant’s position in respect of the flooding is that such flooding of the land as
did take place was of very limited duration. In fact, during the 1990s, water levels
along the Little Stour were so low that there was widespread concern about the
river drying up. Flooding, in the applicant’s view, did not adversely impact upon the
use of the land for recreation or substantially interrupt recreational use during the
material period.

Foot and Mouth closure

63. The tenant farmer, Mr. Holdstock, refers to the closure of the footpaths during the
Foot and Mouth crisis. In Kent, all Public Rights of Way crossing farmland or
woodland were closed to the public between 6pm on 27" February 2001 and 6am
on 12" May 2001 using powers under the Foot and Mouth Disease Order 1983. As
such, there would, necessarily, have been an interruption to the use of the land,
particularly the Water Meadows, during this time.

64.However, section 15(6) of the Commons Act 2006 states that in determining the 20
year period, “there is to be disregarded any period during which access to the land
was prohibited to members of the public by reason of any enactment’. Therefore,
the closure of the land during this three-month period would not have the effect of
defeating the application for the registration of the land as a Village Green.

65.In practice, all that would be required is for the relevant twenty-year period to be
extended by an additional three-month period to take into account the time that the
land was statutorily closed. The applicant’s case is that use of the application site
has taken place for a period in excess of twenty years and, as such, the closure of
the land due to foot-and-mouth would not present any problem in this case.

Conclusion

66.As has been noted above, there have been various disputes regarding the nature
and factual basis of the evidence. The applicant’'s case is that the weight of the
evidence established prolonged and frequent use of the application site by local
residents for recreational purposes. The Objector’s case, on the other hand, is that
whilst there may have been limited recreational use of the application site, the
extent and frequency of such use has been highly exaggerated.

67.Although the relevant Regulations' provide a framework for the initial stages of
processing the application (e.g. advertising the application, dealing with objections
etc), they provide little guidance with regard to the procedure that a Commons
Registration Authority should follow in considering and determining the application.
In recent times it has become relatively commonplace, in cases which are
particularly emotive or where the application turns on disputed issues of fact, for

'® Commons Registration (England) Regulations 2008

Page 32



Registration Authorities to conduct a non-statutory Public Inquiry’'. This involves
appointing an independent Inspector to hear the relevant evidence and report
his/her findings back to the Registration Authority.

68. Such an approach has received positive approval by the Courts, most notably in the

Whitmey'? case in which Waller LJ said this: ‘the registration authority has to
consider both the interests of the landowner and the possible interest of the local
inhabitants. That means that there should not be any presumption in favour of
registration or any presumption against registration. It will mean that, in any case
where there is a serious dispute, a registration authority will almost invariably need
to appoint an independent expert to hold a public inquiry, and find the requisite
facts, in order to obtain the proper advice before registration’.

69.1t is important to remember, as was famously quoted by the Judge in another High

Court case13, that ‘it is no trivial matter for a landowner to have land, whether in
public or private ownership, registered as a town green... [the relevant legal tests]
must be ‘properly and strictly proved’. This means that it is of paramount
importance for a Registration Authority to ensure that, before taking a decision, it
has all of the relevant facts available upon which to base a sound decision. It
should be recalled that the only means of appeal against the Registration
Authority’s decision is by way of a Judicial Review in the High Court.

70.A decision to hold a Public Inquiry is not one which the County Council should take

71.

lightly; such a decision imposes significant burdens on all parties involved in terms
of the preparation for and attendance at the Inquiry. Officers will, in the first
instance, always seek to resolve an application without the need to resort to a
Public Inquiry if at all possible. However, there are occasions, of which this appears
to be one, where there is a serious conflict in the evidence which cannot be
resolved on paper and the County Council has little option other than to refer the
matter to a Public Inquiry for the matters to be clarified before a final decision is
made.

In addition to factual disputes in the evidence outlined above, it is clear from all of
the documentation that the Village Green application is a very emotive issue which
generated a great deal of media publicity and local debate, and has become a
matter of significant local importance. The documentation received by the County
Council is vast and runs to almost 6 lever arch files. It is important for all parties that
all of this evidence receives full and proper scrutiny by an expert in this area of law.
Not only is it in the interest of the landowners to test the evidence which they
dispute in order to ensure that all of the relevant legal tests are strictly met, but
there is also a strong public interest in the matter being heard in public forum so
that all members of the community may participate and make their views known.

" The Public Inquiry is referred to as being ‘non-statutory’ because the Commons Act 2006 does not
expressly confer any powers on the Commons Registration Authority to hold a Public Inquiry. However,
Local Authorities do have a general power to do any thing to facilitate the discharge of any of their
functions and this is contained in section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972.

R (Whitmey) v Commons Commissioners [2004] EWCA Civ 951 at paragraph 66

"3 R v Suffolk County Council, ex parte Steed [1997] 1EGLR 131 at 134

Page 33



72.Therefore, it would appear that it is not possible to determine this matter on paper
and the most appropriate course of action would be for the matter to be referred to
a Public Inquiry.

Recommendations

73.1 recommend that a non-statutory Public Inquiry be held into the case to clarify the
issues.

Accountable Officer:

Mr. Mike Overbeke — Tel: 01622 221513 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk
Case Officer:

Miss. Melanie McNeir — Tel: 01622 221511 or Email: melanie.mcneir@kent.gov.uk

The main file is available for viewing on request at the Countryside Access Service,
Invicta House, County Hall, Maidstone. Please contact the case officer for further
details.

Background documents

APPENDIX A — Plan showing application site

APPENDIX B — Copy of application form

APPENDIX C — Summary of user evidence

APPENDIX D — Plan showing ownership of the application site

Page 34




.
A APPENDIX A:
° Dp!," View . . . .
Hawth
S i, Plan showing the application site
o
[=2] Cre N S
n %00 o &
- K4 Springtime
Morvile
& chllha,,,%
o, ©dge “7x
s - < 3
) o
“
;";’ Glebe )&& The Rectory
@ T Bungalows
g une List Cottage o
o e 9.7m
3
s 9
S s
25 &
:& ) /
E8  cosestous & A
<, 7
S T
> N pear
H %, / C";’;e
ickhambreaux = o >
ﬁ"a, P Vi, e,
%, o e
¢)' 440,.0'
<
7om <'4(° Creckers Bam “0,%, <,
4 Yoo oy Quaives
Wickham e Q’f‘
ekhar e, Halowes e,
%, %, 4 4
U oy
e %, 2%
%, 2 4 % +
, (A
Wickhambreaux Oast ”6%8 e, %t WA
7 Cottages S o % O
Court G\ Theold g & % * Frank Montgomery
Rectory N Yo Y5, %
Rose Inn 2 oS OB 3 Playing Field
& o, Cop
S8 A ) 5 S
i 5 % gty ,
o oS o o
n S n
& < 5
i =
0 & @ oB gﬁ, &\e““ n
A LN g:{,"ﬂa T 2 -
o™ A The Boll ‘@ S Yad
g0 it e SN o
& "o L He RN Riverside o8
s 3 Eee 85 e
s § e85 S E Seaton Mill e
a '3 = '
N
The L oid Willow £ Pond .
S e Fam 3 3
FB. %, %4,:
1o L8 i3
2 8 °%
. Seatonfields
The old
Stone
House
~* Spicer's
L g
Wi e
48
" Mill
Hamlet %
h
[=} o
o P=)
@ 3
7] g w
- = -
£
3
N
$
&
Drain
Tor Spa
Pond
Issues
The
o Potting Shed o
['e] < n
& P
wn able House n
- -

622250

622500

S

le 1:3500

Land subject to Village Green application at
Seaton Meadow, Wickhambreaux




FORM CA9

Commons Act 2006: section 15

APPENDIX B:
Copy of application form

Application for the registration of land Count
as a new Town or Village Green Council

This section is for office use only

Official stamp of the Registration Authority

indicating date of receipt:

Application number:

COMMONS ACT 2006
KENT COUNTY COUNCIL
REGISTRATION AUTHORITY

28 JUN 2010

\NGA G2

VG number allocated at registration
(if application is successful):

Note to applicants

Applicants are advised to read the ‘Part 1 of the Commons Act 2006 (changes to the commons registers):
Guidance to applicants in the pilot implementation areas’ and to note the following:

e All applicants should complete parts 1-6 and 10-12.

e Applicants applying for registration under section 15(1) of the 2006 Act should, in addition, complete

parts 7 and 8. Any person can apply to register land as a green where the criteria for registration in
section 15(2), (3) or (4) apply.

e Applicants applying for voluntary registration under section 15(8) should, in addition, complete part
9. Only the owner of the land can apply under section 15(8).

e There is no fee for applications under section 15.

Note 1
Insert name of Commons
Registration Authority

1. Commons Registration Authority

To the:

Page 36




Note 2

If there is more than one
applicant, list all names. Use a
separate sheet if necessary.
State the full title of the
organisation if the applicant is a
body corporate or
unincorporate. If you supply an
emaill address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authority or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
email. If part 3 is not completed
all correspondence and notices
will be sent to the first named
applicant,

2. Name and address of the applicant :
Wickh ambreawyx Pawsh Cownexl .

Application  guly 'mu'HQ(l \tﬂj " : |
Full postal address: MWs Chnstine le Jewn e_@hm ¥ e
(incl. Postcode) Fts\r\qu?_ Howse ; The SEreel,

Witk ks MUY Nr Caulerh L]
by e AN N

Name:

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

p—

Note 3
This part should be completed if
representative, e.g. a solicitor,
1s instructed for the purposes of
the application. If so all
correspondence and notices will
he sent to the person or firm
named here. If you supply an
email address in the box
provided, you may receive
communications from the
Registration Authority or other
persons (e.g. objectors) via
email.

3. Name and address of representative, if any
Name:
Firm:

Full postal address:
(incl. Postcode)

Telephone number:
(incl. national dialling code)

Fax number:
(incl. national dialling code)

E-mail address:

Note 4

For further details of the
requirements of an application
refer to Schedule 4, paragraph
9 to the Commons Registration
(England) Regulations 2008.

4. Basis of application for registration and qualifying criteria

If you are the landowner and are seeking voluntarily to register your
land please tick this box and move to question 5. Application made
under section 15(8): O

If the application is made under section 15(1) of the Act, please tick
one of the following boxes to indicate which particular subsection and
qualifying criterion applies to the case.

Section 15(2) applies: 0

w’

Section 15(3) applies:

W

Section 15(4) applies:

Page 37




*Section 15(6) enables any
period of statutory closure
where access fo the land is
denied to be disregarded in
determining the 20 year period.

If section 15(3) or (4) applies, please indicate the date on which you
consider that use ‘as of right' ended and why:

F%UL omd Pa,r,l.‘or,k.e,r.l aaﬂ rJL{,K:. N Pla,(__gg,
sver o blvo week P¢r¢0cl {rmm Vo
\o,afjivmivx\xj o{f March, Zoto.

If section 15(6)* is being relied upon in determining the period of 20
years, indicate the period of statutory closure (if any) which needs to
be disregarded:

Cleso d he cause u{ Foek and Mo uwkh

neS Lty ons Ma,\mv—_lu,u 200!,

Note 5

.his part is to identify the new
green. The accompanying map
must be at a scale of at least
1:2,500 and shows the land by
means of distinctive colouring
within an accurately identified
boundary. State the Land
Registry title number where
known,

5. Description and particulars of the area of land in respect of
which application for registration is made

Name by which usually known:

Seokon Meac ow

Location: @i uwnzoin Jdns \,;\\a_{‘@ ¢ Wi ckandareawy
amd the hawlet & Leaton.

5 B 5
é—%ﬁn&eﬂ@lﬁﬂé-m?ﬁtggt}ﬁmz‘%%w&%ithelga 4 Llféa%yﬂ
registered-Common.-Land). kqis %31

kb5 bso

k4 b5 W17
Please tick the box to confirm that you have attached a map of the
land (at a scale of at least 1:2,500): o

Note 6

It may be possible to indicate
the locality of the green by
reference to an administrative
area, such as a parish or
electoral ward, or other area
sufficiently defined by name
(such as a village). If this is not
possible a map should be
provided on which a locality or
neighbourhood is marked
clearly at a scale of 1:10,000.

6. Locality or neighbourhood within a locality in respect of
which the application is made

Indicate the locality (or neighbourhood within the locality) to which the
claimed green relates by writing the administrative area or
geographical area by name below and/or by attaching a map on
which the area is clearly marked:

The h{,iﬂhkow\wocl oﬁ\' Wi e h anclateaay
\ri\\&ﬂq, with  Seakon \f\c:ﬂ,m\d/t) within  the
\OC,(J\,LC\Z‘\Q.S tf\‘ W\C»LL\"\U\,VWHWM)L ol ‘(Jé‘/\ﬁ.w\,
ot shao s o

Please tick here if a map is attached (at a scale of 1:10,000):

Page 38




Note 7

Applicants should provide a
summary of the case for
registration here and enclose a
separate full statement and all
other evidence including any
witness statements in support of
the application.

This information is not needed if
a landowner is applying to
register the land as a green
under section 15(8).

7. Justification for application to register the land as a Town or
Village Green

Seaton Meadow lies on the edge of Wickhambreaux village and the
adjacent hamlet of Seaton, with the Little Stour River flowing through
it. It has been used by a significant number of past and present
inhabitants of both communities for the twenty years from October
1989 to February 2010 and for many decades before that. (The dates
include four months’ statutory closure due to Foot and Mouth disease
in 2001)

The meadow has been accessed openly, without force and without
seeking anyone’s permission.

It has been used for exercise, dog walking, enjoying river views,
paddling in the river, bird watching and many other activities, as
testified in the witness statements and listed in the Appendix.

115 Evidence questionnaire s are being submitted representing 163
named individuals

The Parish Council believes that all the relevant criteria have been met
for the land to be registered as a village green.

Meas wloo see full skekomonk, wiv Apptadix

Note 8

Use a separate sheet if
necessary. This information is
not needed if a landowner is
applying to register the land as

a green under section 15(8). I)

2)
)

)

8. Name and address of every person whom the applicant
believes to be an owner, lessee, proprietor of any “relevant
charge”, tenant or occupier of any part of the land claimed to be
a town or village green

Mr & My MLuJ«‘- Pesk s Wﬂﬁrf’(&d, Seakon Koad,
Witkhaumbreany CT3 IRW. ClHe no . KAb5 H3T)

My + Mys David PlQ\c.o, Hmk-‘i‘dak \hnum' Seakion QU‘U{.
Widkdhambwoose €12 1RW  (Title wo. kq b5 ¢ 80)

Mi-x Mas &Ler,.lw_,h Vo De V\jw,r Sealcon M,Ll,\ Seakon Ro:wl
lekham €T3 184 (Tile ne. kAb5 H-3b)

M Rithard Laook.e_ Riidaowell Hou,s,e Rridoweld L-cuxe
Tenterdon TN 30 bFA  awd

DA ‘)\‘\1\\\‘)5 +(o. L\)nl Bivdowswll Houwse, Bivdewell hay

Tenkerdg, TN 30 bFEA CTitle wo. R9bS Lm)
Page 39




Note 9

List or enter in the form all such
declarations that accompany
the application. This can include
any written declarations sent to
the applicant (i.e. a letter), and
also any such declarations
made on the form itself.

9. Voluntary registration — declarations of consent from any
relevant leaseholder of, and of the proprietor of any relevant
charge over, the land

Note 10

List all supporting consents,
documents and maps '
accompanying the application.
Evidence of ownership of the
land must be included for
“oluntarily registration
applications. There is no need
to submit copies of documents
issued by the Registration
Authority or to which it was a
party but they should still be
listed. Use a separate sheet if
necessary.

10. Supporting documentation
See abached shedks ww Appludin
(Red ond blue ol daxs)

Note 11

List any other matters which
should be brought to the
attention of the Registration
Authority (in particular if a
person interested in the land is
expected to challenge the
application for registration). Full
details should be given here or
on a separate sheet if
necessary.

11. Any other information relating to the application
We entpect wosk ﬁ—% the oclonesrs bto
C)\/\Mm\(ﬁe, the %%i%(\‘;wbbi on CS& S ckiown K)

We hoawve MCove d 29 -ﬁ«ov—ms) Su.ﬂmou:t( owy

o\q‘j,\r\n){)/mm P,e,g‘:.\p_ oulside pun M'kBDurhood,
Wit we Wome not Swhimidted | bk whieh
e oneilahle if gqponed.

Page 40




Note 12 12. Signature
The application must be signed

by each individual applicant, or
by the authorised officer of an
applicant which is a body
corporate or unincorporate.

Signature(s) of applicant(s):

Date: Q‘BML J/uw‘ D ola

REMINDER TO APPLICANT

You are responsible for telling the truth in presenting the application and accompanying evidence.
You may commit a criminal offence if you deliberately provide misleading or untrue evidence and if
you do so you may be prosecuted. You are advised to keep a copy of the application and all
associated documentation.

Please send your completed application form to:

The Commons Registration Team
(ent County Council
Countryside Access Service
Invicta House

County Hall

Maidstone

Kent ME14 1XX

Data Protection Act 1998

The application and any representations made cannot be treated as confidential. To determine the
application it will be necessary for the Commons Registration Authority to disclose information
received from you to others, which may include other local authorities, Government Departments,
public bodies, other organisations and members of the public.

A copy of this form and any accompanying documents may be disclosed upon receipt of a request

for information under the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and the Freedom of
Information Act 2000.

Page 41




Wickhambreaux Parish Council Village Green Application — Seaton Meadow

Full Statement justifying application to register Seaton Meadow as a Village Green (as mentioned
in Note 7)

Seaton meadow lies between Wickhambreaux and Seaton, in the parish of Ickham. Of the three
stiles which give access to the land, two are on the outskirts of Wickhambreaux and one at Seaton.
Wickhambreaux village is closer to the meadow than the village of Ickham so the land is used
predominantly by Wickhambreaux residents, hence Wickhambreaux Parish Council is submitting this
claim (see letter of support from Ickham Parish Council in Appendix).

The Meadow was owned for centuries by the Church Commissioners. The land was used by tenant
farmers as part of an extensive grazing marsh, mostly for cattle. It is part of the Ickham,
Wickhambreaux and Seaton Conservation Area (see map in Appendix). The Little Stour river, a chalk
stream, flows through the site. The river is very shallow here and stepping stones enabled people to
cross to the rest of the meadow. The stiles give access to two sections of footpath CB184 which are
clearly marked with signs but people have always wandered at will over the whole area, up to the
river, along the bank, across the river, amongst the cattle and beyond. People accessed the land
openly, via the stiles and the stepping stones, and did not ask anyone’s permission.

In the Autumn of 2009 a large acreage along the river valley was put up for sale by the
Commissioners. Seaton Meadow was part of the land bought by a consortium of private individuals,
who then divided it up. The meadow was divided between four separate owners (see section 8),
three of whom have houses and gardens adjoining the land.

In March 2010 stock-proof fencing, topped with barbed wire, was erected along footpath CB184,
cutting off access to the river and the meadow.

You will see from the evidence forms that over the last twenty years, and for the whole of living
memory, many activities have taken place on the land. People have walked to enjoy the views, to
watch the river, and to exercise their dogs. Children have paddled and used fishing nets, flown kites,
played chase, thrown balls and tobogganed down the river banks in the snow. People have sketched,
painted, practised photography and watched the birds and wildlife. Some have even practised golf
shots. People have run along the banks watching charity duck races (plastic ducks!) and at one féte
hot air balloon rides were given from the meadow.

The land has been used daily by the people of Wickhambreaux Village and the nearby hamlet of
Seaton and there are close links between the two as Seaton has no facilities of its own.
Wickhambreaux is the nearest village to Seaton, only a quarter of a mile away by road. Seaton
children have attended Wickhambreaux School and Seaton residents participate in events in
Wickhambreaux Village Hall. Wickhambreaux and Seaton are linked within the Ickham,
Wickhambreaux and Seaton Conservation Area. People mix socially and the Rose Inn in
Wickhambreausx is the nearest hostelry. (Further details regarding the cohesive nature of
Wickhambreaux and Seaton is provided in the letters from Emmy Watts and Annabel Ward in
Appendix).

Page 42



Wickhambreaux Parish Council Village Green Application — Seaton Meadow

Wickhambreaux Village and Seaton comprise approximately 126 and 10 households respectively
(housing approximately 255 adults). 115 Evidence questionnaire's have been received from past and
present Wickhambreaux and Seaton residents representing 163 named individuals. This figure does
not include the use by children referred to on many of the forms. All of the forms are from residents
who have used Seaton Meadow within the last 20 years, apart from 2 (numbers 16 and 73) who are
from former residents who used the land over 20 years ago. The evidence questionnaire s show that
Seaton Meadow has been used by Wickhambreaux and Seaton residents since 1934 (see form 11). A
chart in the Appendix lists the 37 most popular activities carried out or observed on Seaton Meadow
and a further chart shows that these have mostly been carried out daily.

Seaton Meadow is an idyllic spot and the Parish Council wishes to register it as a village green so that
the activities enjoyed by so many for so long can continue for future generations.

Page 43




APPENDIX C:
Summary of user evidence submitted
in support of the application

Name Period of Frequency Activities Other comments

use
Mr & Mrs C. 32 years Weekly when Walking, kite flying, ball | When resident weekly
Alabaster until 2000 resident, now for games observed children playing,

village events

walkers, village events

Mr M. Ashley-Jones

1998-present

Weekly

Family walks, playing,
picnics, enjoying
wildlife, relaxing

Regular use by others —
walking, paddling, bird
watching. Use now limited
due to now fenced

Mr & Mrs P. Barrett | 1994 — Daily when could Dog walking, playing in | Feb 2010 land fenced and
present river with children, kite | signs put up
(fenced off flying
Feb 2010)
Mr & Mrs J. 1960 until Daily when could Walking, playing in Observed daily walkers,
Bateman fenced off river, picnics, dog people with picnics,
2010 walking children playing in river
Mrs L. Bates 1982 - Regular basis Children played in river, | Others use of playing,
picnics, walking, fishing | walking, picnics, Village
for tiddlers duck races, school use for
river projects
Mr & Mrs D. Bolton | 1982 — 2010 | Weekly/monthly Walking, bird watching, | Can see from house daily
fenced off river watching, use until recent erection of
blackberrying, playing fences and signs. School
with grandchildren often use river for projects
Alecia Brewster 1987-2010 Regularly 1987- Dog walking, picnics, March 2010 fenced off.
fenced off 1994, occasionally paddling, kite flying, See others regularly
1994-2000, regularly | duck feeding walking & using land
2000-2010 before
Miss A. 1969-1999 Weekly As child played, Daily see others enjoying,
Broadbridge paddled in river, walking & family fun. Now
picnhicked, as teenager | looks an eyesore as
walked, relaxed and fenced off and community
then as nanny took deprived
children there to play &
enjoy river
Mr R. & Mrs A. 1940 -1992 Monthly, 1992 Played, walked, picnics | Daily walkers &
Broadbridge occasionally birdwatchers, school pond
dipping, kids playing
Tina Burton, David | 1991 — Daily Dog walking, pond Daily seen other users
Burton present(only dipping with children, playing, walking, canoeing
footpath) family fun
Mrs D. Chandler 1934 — 1994 | Daily as child, Field games (rounders, | Daily seen others walking,
weekly/daily as adult | cricket), picnicking, fishing, playing, also
walking, fishing village school activities
Mr D. Chandler 1971 - Daily/weekly as Played in river as child, | See other family activities
present child, now walking and playing
occasionally with with own children
own children
Mark Chandler 1970 — Weekly as child, Paddling, fishing, kite See other games &
present occasionally now. flying, use river activities
Take own children stepping stones to
cross to next village
Roy Chandler 1960 — Daily as child, Walking & playing; cut | See others walking &
present occasionally now across river to next playing in river
village
Lisa Clark 2002 — 2010 | Daily & more in Dog walking, children March 2010 fence

when fenced

summer

paddling, fishing

erected. Previously used
by village daily

4.4
i




Mrs C. Clarke 1963 — 2010 | Occasionally Dog walking, kite flying, | March 2010 fences put up.
picnicking, sledging Always people using land
and same with own
children

Genevieve Cobb 1990 - Occasionally Walking, bird watching, | Notices March 2010.

March 2010 enjoying nature, picnic | Other activities weekly

Mr R. Collins 1985 -2010 | Weekly Bird watching on behalf | Fence erected 2010.
of Kent Ornithological Other use of walking,
Society, family walks & | picnics, paddling
play, dog walks

Mr & Mrs K. Cooper | 1971 - 2010 | Weekly Family picnics, walking, | Seen others walking,
children playing pichicking

Mr J. Cotton 1999 — Daily or weekly Exercise See others walking,

present playing

Mrs D Curtis 1955 — Daily when lived in Children playing, Regularly see others

present village, occasionally | paddling, walking dog walking, family outings,
now moved to fishing
Wingham

Mrs J. Dack 1980 — 2010 | Monthly sometimes Dog walking, See other walkers

when fenced | more exercising, children
off played

Mr M. Dack 1980 — 2010 | Monthly Walking with family & Used by village school
pets until fencing March 2010

John & Rose 1958 — 2010 | Monthly Walking, relaxing, play | Fenced off 2010. Seen

Dartnell with children other use of walking

Mr & Mrs Davies 1994 — 2010 | Weekly Walking, paddling with | Other use dog walking,

when fenced

children, picnicking,
fishing

children playing, fishing.
Local school used land for
projects.

March 2010 fence erected

Fiona Dawson 1998 — Occasionally, more Walking, paddling, Other use daily — walking,
present in summer. Children | fishing, village duck playing
use it weekly/daily race, picnics, games
Claire Day 1989 - Daily now Walking, playing Return to village to enjoy
present occasionally as the land, but recently
moved away fenced
Jan de Bont 1987 — Monthly Walking, enjoying river | See other walkers
present
Laura Downes 1978 — Weekly in summer, Fishing, making camps, | See others enjoying the
present monthly in winter village duck races, land — family games &
picnics, making play. Safe area in locality
snowmen, now do the
same with own children
Zara & Patrick 2000 — 2010 | Daily Dog walking, family & Daily see others walking,
Duffy friends walks, paddling | playing, picnicking,
in river with children, children fishing
bird watching
Mr & Mrs Dutton 1987 — 2010 | Daily / weekly Walk dogs, play with See other use — walking,
fence children, jog, pond blackberrying, picnicking,
erected dipping playing in river
Sharon Egin 2007 — 2010 | Daily Dog walks, children Fencing off safe area
fence put up playing in river affects safe childrens play
Mr & Mrs G 2006 — 2010 | Weekly Dog walking, picnics, March 2010 fence & signs
Farnham fence bird watching, running erected. Previously daily
erected use by others walking,
fishing, playing
Ms J. Farnham 2006 Daily since 2009 Walking, jogging, bird Fence erected & signs
watching put up end Feb 2010.
Local school using river
for pond dipping, people
used land daily
Mr B. Ford 1984 — 2010 | Daily with dogs, now | Walking, photography, | See others daily walking,
fence weekly paddling in river kids playing, picnicking
erected IS

Paqge
Fage

™




Mrs M. Gooderon 1996 — 2010 | Occasionally Walking, bird watching | 2010 fence put up. Others
fenced off walking, picnics, children
playing, bird watching
Mrs K. Gower 1985 - 2010 | Occasionally to 2008 | Dog walking, picnics, Fence installed & signs
fenced off then daily playing as child, school | Feb 2010. Others
outings walking, playing, fruit
picking, bird watching
Caroline Hagan 1975 - 2010 | Weekly/ Monthly Fishing/playing in river, | Other use — usually see
fenced off 1998 onwards making camps, others walking, fishing,
occasionally photography, kite flying
snowmen, sledging
David Haigh 1976 — 2010 | Monthly Exercise, wildlife 2010 erection of fencing &
observation notice. Other use of
walking, picnics, children
paddling, bird watching
Mr H. Haines 1982 — 2009 | Weekly/monthly Bird watching, walking | 2010 prohibitive notices.
due toiill to Seaton Village school used river
health for educational activities.
Mrs J. Hammond 1963 - Weekly Picnics, children fishing | Other use of dog walking
present in river and playing & children playing
rounders, camping,
cricket, kites
Tracy Harris 1992 — 2010 | Weekly & daily Dog walking, children Feb/Mar 2010 fence &
fence during school playing in river, notices went up, family
holidays sledging in winter can no longer use it. See
others daily, walking,
playing, school projects
Geordie Hayward 1962 — Mar 1991 — weekly/daily | Dog walking, 2010 barbed wire fence
2010 fence photography, kite erected & notices. Always
flying, ball games, see others walking,
blackberrying, dam (house overlooks the
building with children, Marsh) & many other
bird watching activities
Ollie Hayward 1991 - 2010 | Daily Cross-country running, | 2010 erection of barbed
walking, kite flying, wire fence. See others
socialising on river walking, school field trips
bank
Mrs E. Healy 1984 — 1999 | Daily when had dog | Strolling, observing Popular childrens & family
river, taking area
grandchildren to play
Miss H. Hirst 2001 - 2010 | Daily Dog walking, watching | March 2010 fence
wildlife, meeting others, | obstruction. Daily see
village Tai Chi group others use & enjoyment of
land — walking, playing,
school children by river
Mr & Mrs G 2006 — April | Weekly Walking Recent obstructions of
Hutchings 2010 fence. See other walkers
Joy Jennings 1996 — Daily with dog, less Walking with dog & 2010 March fence & signs
March 2010 | now due to health neighbours prevented use of land.
Regularly others walking,
flying kites, school nature
trips, family fun
Julia Jensen 2008 - Every few days Dog walking Others playing, walking
present
John Joice 1999 — Weekly Walking, observing March 2010 barbed wire
March 2010 nature, taking son for fence & notices. Other
walks & play use of walking, children
playing, school outings.
Used for village recreation
for decades
Mrs E. Jones 1978 — 2010 | Occasionally, Walking, picnics, tai-chi | March 2010 fence &

children used daily in
school holidays

ol

class, hot air
ballooning, paddling in
river, bird watching,

notices put up. Daily use
by others — walking, ball
games, paddling, picnics

laVa'l
ay

fishing
U




Mrs C. Kelsey 1960 Weekly Walking, picnics, bird 2010 notices, fence &
watching, playing locked gates, security
games lights. Other use of

walking, bird watching

Knight Family 1991 - Weekly Walking dogs, taking 2010 fence & notices

present children to play, cross erected. General
(restricted) country running group community use as amenity
land

Michael Knott 1962 — 2001 | Daily Exploring wildlife & Daily use by others —

(moved river, bird watching, walking, fishing, children
away) walking. playing in river, kite flying

Eunice & Hyman 1961 - Occasionally Walking, kite flying, See others walking, kite

Kossoff present children playing flying, children playing

Graham Lane 2001 — 2010 | Weekly/monthly Walking, playing with March 2010 notices &
children, dog walking, fences prevented use.
playing in river Prior use by others —

walking playing in streams
etc.

Mr & Mrs R. Lane 1974 — 2010 | Weekly Family recreation Notices & fences put up.

David & Angela Le | 1987 - Weekly Walking, picking Other use — artists,

Breton present blackberries, paddling birdwatchers, dog walkers,
with children, sketching | photographers

Christine Le Jeune | 1973 — 1970s several times | Children paddled & 2010 fence & notices.

March 2010 | a week, 80s & 90s fished in summers, Previously see others
weekly, now monthly | snow play & daily — can see from
tobogganing winter; house. Hot air balloon
picnics, blackberrying rides, school projects

Mrs L. Lodge 1980 — 2010 | Occasionally Dog walking, enjoying 2010 restricted access.
nature, take classes Other daily use or weekly
from school to paint & — walkers, bird watchers,
carry out nature children playing, fishing,
surveys, history picnics
projects

Norman & Ann 2007 — Daily Dog walking & enjoying | See others a lot —

Long present river bank walking, painting, children

playing

Mr & Mrs D. 1994 — 2010 | Several times a Dog walking, bird 2010 fence erected.

Maclsaac week watching, paddling in Other use — walking,
stream, enjoying playing, local primary
riverbank school, snowballs &

snowmen in winter

Mr & Mrs A. 1963 — Occasionally Walking, activities with | Fences & warning notices

Mauduit present children & March 2010. Daily see

(restricted) grandchildren, other recreational use

Brian Maxted 1963 — 2010 | Occasionally Photography, wildlife, Barbed wire fence &
children & locked gates 2010. Prior
grandchildren playing, daily use by others —
relaxing walking, playing

Mr & Mrs J 1982 — 2009 | Occasionally Walking, playing with Weekly use by others —

McGeever (moved children walking, playing

away)

Rita & Bob 1992 — 2010 | Daily/weekly Walking, sitting Fence erected. Others

McMurran watching wildlife walking, playing

Mr & Mrs Metcalf 1960 — Daily Picnics & playing as March 2010 areas fenced

March 2010 child, then walking off. Seen children playing,
school activities, walkers,
twitchers

Mr & Mrs R. 1984 Daily until 2004 then | Walking & picnicking Observed others walking,

Mitchell onwards weekly with friends & family, playing, photography, bird
children played and watching, picnics
went on school study
trips

Edward Moon 1952 - 2010 | 1982-2006 daily, Playing and school Observe others walking &

then weekly

activities as child, then

playing

dpg walking, meeting




others, enjoying nature

Pam & Ron Moon 1960’s- 2010 | Weekly Dog walking, children Use now restricted.
playing in river, Others use — walking, kite
meeting friends flying, playing in river

Jacqueline Mount 1993 — Couple of times per | Walking, playing with March 2010 new owners

March 2010 | month children in river put up fence. Seen others
walking, picnics, playing
Mrs R. Murgatroyd | 1961 — 2010 | Weekly Horseriding, dog Ugly fence erected 2010 &
walking, enjoying notices. Seen other
nature walkers & golf practice
Mrs R. K. 2007 — 2010 | Occasionally Dog walking Daughter used land for
O’Sullivan nature study lessons
Mr & Mrs B. 2002 — 2010 | Daily Dog walking Prior to March 2010 no
Ovenden indications land was
private. See other
walkers, birdwatchers,
children playing
Mrs S. Paine 1992 — 2010 | Occasionally Walking with family See children enjoying
river, walkers
Dr J. Peebles 1987 — Daily when resident | Walking, childrens
present in village, now games and learning
monthly about river
Jo Pestel 1986 — 2005 | Frequently in Walking Family still in village and
(moved summer, less winter use land
away)
Katy Pickvance & 1986 — 2010 | Daily all year Walking, children Recent fence & signs
family playing, observing stopped use.
nature, enjoying
countryside
David Pollard 1970 Occasionally Walking with family Seen children playing,
walkers
Max & Camilla 1962 — 2010 | Monthly Fishing, playing with Always see others
Presland children, walking with walking, playing
family
Joan Priestman 1998 — 2010 | Monthly Dog walking Seen others walking,
paddling
Terence Relph 1980 — 2010 | Daily Dog walking, playing Observe others walking &
with children in river playing
Christopher & Anne | 1970 — 2010 | Weekly/daily/monthly | Family picnics, playing | March 2010 fence erected
Riddell 1955 -2010 | over the years in river, pond dipping, & signs put up. See other
walking with friends, use of walking, playing,
wildlife surveys local school activities,
picnics
Fern Riddell 1986 — 2010 | Daily/weekly as Dog walking, paddling, | March 2010 fence and
child, 2005 at picnics with friends, signs put up. Other use
university, still use in | learn about nature walking, picnics, family
holidays fun, river studies for
primary school. Land
used by three generations
of family
John Somers 2005 —-2010 | 2-3 times per week Dog walking, family fun | 2010 fence & signs put up
— paddling, sledging,
picnics, reading
Isabella Stephens 1982 - 2010 | Several times a Walking, running, March 2010 fence & signs
week picnics with put up. School use land
grandchildren for projects
Charlotte & Eoin 1996 — 2010 | Daily Dog walking, children Seen others playing,
Stewart restricted playing games & on picnicking, walking.
access river, photography,
blackberrying
Elizabeth M. 1949 — 2010 | Regularly to Dog walking, playing 2010 notices put up. Over
Stewart occasionally over when children young — | years people walking,
years kites, in river, with playing, fishing,
friends mushrooming
lan Stewart 1977 — 2010 | Regularly mid 80’s & | Dog walking, playing Notices up March 2010.
(restricted) 90’s, now Page Juith children Village duck race




occasionally

Judy Sturrock 2001 — 2009 | Occasionally Playing with Always people dog
grandchildren , walking | walking
& enjoying scenery

Edward Taylor 1988 - Weekly as child, now | Walk dog, fly kite, play | Others walking, playing,
present occasionally when in stream picnics, painting

visit

Susan & Peter 1980 — 2010 | Daily / weekly Walking with dogs, Notices up March 2010.

Terrill children, friends, Daily see others walking,

picnicking, kite flying, ball games, children
paddling, picking playing in river
mushrooms

Katherine Trotter 2003 — 2010 | Twice weekly Walking, paddling, March 2010 fences &
restricted picnicking, dog walking | notices up restricting
access access.

Mr Alex Twyman 1946 — 2000 | Weekly Fishing, dog walking, See others playing,
(moved paddling with children, | picnicking, walking
away) bird watching

Carol Twyman 1960 — 2000 | Weekly Picnics, walking dogs, Daily see others enjoying
(moved children playing, bird land
away) watching

Emma Twyman 1972 - 2000 | Weekly Paddling, picnicking, Three generation of family
(moved rounders, village duck have enjoyed the land
away) race, bird watching

Timothy Upcroft & 2002 — 2010 | Weekly Painting, picnics, Daily see kite flying, ball

Mary Clemson walking with family & games, walkers, playing in

friends river

Mrs Ann Vine 1988 - Weekly, now Walking, watching 2010 fence put up.

occasionally grandchildren play Always seen walkers &
children playing

Dr. J Volkman 2001 - Daily, weekly, Walking, children Signs put up March 2010

monthly (weather paddling & playing in

dep) stream, kite flying,
picnicking,
photography, enjoying
nature & wildlife,
socialising

Annabel Ward 1977 - Weekly (sometimes | Walking, dog Barbed wire & notices

daily) exercising, wildlife, March 2010 “no right of
meet friends, bird access’
watching, community
activities
John & Emmy 1964 - Daily Dog walking, children & | Wire fencing put up 2010
Watts grandchildren playing,
Easter egg hunts,
blackberrying, family
fun
Lucy Watts 1970 - Frequently Dog walking, picnics, March 2010 fence & signs
bird watching, painting, | put up
playing, blackberrying
Tim Watts 1960’s - Frequently as child, Walking, playing Often see others playing,
now occasionally games, paddling in walking etc.
river, kite flying, dog
walking
Mrs E Wellard 1996 - Weekly now monthly | Kite flying, picnics, Weekly see others using
drawing, children land. Concern for safety
playing in river with wire put up

Mr A White 1997 - Occasionally Walking See other walkers &

families.

Mrs C Whiting 1973 - As child daily or Play games, fishing, Daily see other use

weekly, 1992
onwards less so

kite flying, picnics,
meet friends,

Paa

jackberrying




Brian Wilkinson 1998 — 2010 | Daily Dog walking, taking See other use — family
grandchildren along picnics, walks, games
riverbank, bird
watching

Mrs J Wilkinson 1966 - Monthly, Walking, picnics, Other use by walkers

occasionally now blackberrying, playing
older with grandchildren

Karen & Malcolm 2007 - Daily Walking, bird watching, | March 2010 sign of no

Withers playing with access
grandchildren

J Wood & M Blake | 1978 - Often / occasionally | Walking, exploring Prevented since March
riverbank 2010

R Wood & C Savin | 2003 Occasionally Dog walking, picnics,
playing

The Wright Family 1987 — 2010 | Daily / weekly over Dog walking, children Prevented by current

years playing, picnics, river owners
exploring
Holly Wyles 2006 - Weekly Dog walking March 2010
Philip Wyles 2006 - Daily Dog walking Prevented March 2010

Page 50




622000 622250
= T APPENDIX D:
o Plan showing the ownership
application site
3 ég a:::::,ws List Cottage %"/‘ A
S a 97m
3é & %,
¢§ & 4
g g Closes Hou: «;\s Y
N o S
i 4’%0 Pear
% « . Wickhambreaux ey i
g % 3
S %
7.9m G, Creekers Bam 4,(::; %, |
X Wickham e ", Quaives
Lodge. (/,% “ 90% Hallowes' o
Wickhambreaux Oast O%”%o K5 @, 4%':-
Court ‘i‘% TR:::,:,; Cottages \"’ &&é »;;;’Z’a:’% <& Frank Montgomery Pumping Station
Rose Inn P 4?59 %’: 0:;, o Playing Field
cr K %
o S < oé"»o %, to \ o
wn &S o Hol n
~ op S N K N~
o - ¢ 2\ &S o )
w0 & o= £ 3 o e n
-~ e © % waives ¢ B
) o Th S RS Cottage * path (um)
¢ S\ H o3, i Rversido
°“ 3 3% Y
s 2 SE %, Seaton Mill
. o o 5 Old Willow £ T 0 Rda K965680 -
i & Farm & o7 Cottages %,
H s . o,
o> s (Mr. and Mrs. Perkins) g
o 3 1cB 83 Hookﬂa:e/% 7 Seatonfields
it |
Har:|l t % \
K965436
(Mr. and Mrs. va
K965680 de Vyer)
° (Mr. and Mrs. i o
o - . o
S Pierce) 2
n 0
-~ -
K965417
(Premier
Trust)
&
&
Pond
o Potiag Shed o
wn n
N N
=23 =<3
:f_’ Stable House :f_)
This ptanhas been p¥&parédor illustrative purposes only. i~
[For details as to the exact boundaries of ovqnership, please refer to the Land Registry Title plans. s
1
622250 622500

622000

S

le 1:3500

Land subject to Village Green application at
Seaton Meadow, Wickhambreaux




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



	Agenda
	3 Application to register land at Woodland Road at Lyminge as a new Village Green
	4 Application to register land known as Seaton Meadow at Wickhambreaux as a new Village Green

